
SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY 
SANITATION DISTRICT 

Post Office Box 339, Oceano, California  93475-0339 
1600 Aloha, Oceano, California 93445-9735 

Telephone (805) 489-6666  FAX (805) 489-2765 
www.sslocsd.org 

 
AGENDA 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
City of Arroyo Grande, City Council Chambers 

215 East Branch Street 
Arroyo Grande, California 93420 

   
Wednesday, April 20, 2016 at 6:00 p.m. 

 
Board Members                                                             Agencies 
John Shoals, Chair                   City of Grover Beach 
Mary Lucey, Director                  Oceano Community Services District 
Jim Hill, Director                   City of Arroyo Grande 
 
Alternate Board Members  
Matthew Guerrero, Director       Oceano Community Services District 
Tim Brown, Director       City of Arroyo Grande 
Barbara Nicolls, Director           City of Grover Beach 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

 
2. FLAG SALUTE 
 
3. PUBLIC COMMENTS ON ITEMS NOT APPEARING ON AGENDA 
 

This public comment period is an invitation to members of the community to present comments, 
thoughts or suggestions on matters not scheduled on this agenda.  Comments should be limited to 
those matters which are within the jurisdiction of the District.  The Brown Act restricts the Board 
from taking formal action on matters not published on the agenda.  In response to your comments, 
the Chair or presiding Board Member may: 

• Direct Staff to assist or coordinate with you. 
• Direct Staff to place your issue or matter on a future Board meeting agenda. 

Please adhere to the following procedures when addressing the Board: 
• Comments should be limited to three (3) minutes or less. 
• Your comments should be directed to the Board as a whole and not directed to 

individual Board members. 
• Slanderous, profane or personal remarks against any Board Member, Staff or 

member of the audience shall not be permitted. 
 

Any writing or document pertaining to an open-session item on this agenda which is distributed 
to a majority of the Board after the posting of this agenda will be available for public inspection 

001



 

at the time the subject writing or document is distributed.  The writing or document will be 
available for public review in the offices of the Oceano CSD, a member agency located at 1655 
Front Street, Oceano, California.  Consistent with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and 
California Government Code §54954.2, requests for disability-related modification or 
accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, may be made by a person with a disability 
who requires modification or accommodation in order to participate at the above referenced 
public meeting by contacting the District Manager or Bookkeeper/Secretary at (805) 481-6903.  
So that the District may address your request in a timely manner, please contact the District two 
business days in advance of the meeting. 

 
4. CONSENT AGENDA: 
 

The following routine items listed below are scheduled for consideration as a group.  Each 
item is recommended for approval unless noted.  Any member of the public who wishes to 
comment on any Consent Agenda item may do so at this time.  Any Board Member may 
request that any item be withdrawn from the Consent Agenda to permit discussion or to 
change the recommended course of action.  The Board may approve the remainder of the 
Consent Agenda on one motion. 
 
4A.   Review and Approval of Minutes of Meeting of April 06, 2016 
4B.   Review and Approval of Warrants   
4C. Financial Review at March 30, 2016 

 
5. PLANT SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT 
 
6. BOARD ACTION ON INDIVIDUAL ITEMS: 
    
 6A.   Resolution 2016-343 Adopting District Administrator contract with   
  Gerhardt Hubner.   
 
  Staff recommends that the Board adopt by resolution: the appointment of   
  Gerhardt Hubner as District Administrator, and authorizes the Board Chairman to  
  execute the employment contract. 
 
 6B.   Resolution 2016-344 and an Agreement with Speiss Construction Company  
  for construction of a Grit Removal System  
 
  Staff recommends that the Board of Directors award the contract for  
  installation of a Grit Removal System to Spiess Construction Company, and 
  that the Board adopt a resolution directing the District Administrator to enter 
  into an agreement with Spiess Construction Company, Inc. for the   
  construction of a Grit Removal System at the Oceano Wastewater Treatment 
  Plant. 
 
 6C. Resolution 2016-345 and an Agreement with Merk Associates, LLC for  
  Environmental Review Services for the Cherry Avenue Sewer Bridge   
  Maintenance Projects  
 

002



 

  Staff recommends that the Board of Directors adopt a resolution authorizing 
  the District Administrator to enter into an agreement with Kevin Merk  
  Associates, LLC for Environmental Review Services for the Cherry Ave.  
  Bridge Project. 
 
 6D. Resolution 2016-346 and an Agreement with Aquatic Bioassay & Consulting  
  Laboratories, Inc. for Professional Services for Ocean Outfall Inspection. 
 
  Staff recommends that the Board of Directors adopt a resolution authorizing  
  the District Administrator to enter an agreement with Aquatic Bioassay Inc. 
  to perform an Ocean Outfall Inspection on the District’s Ocean Outfall. 
 
 6E.  Resolution 2016-347 and an Agreement with Bartle Wells to assist in SRF  
  Loan Application process.  
 
  Staff recommends that the Board of Directors adopt a resolution authorizing  the  
  District Administrator to execute the attached contract with Bartle, Wells, and  
  Associates for completion of the State Revolving Funding financing application  
  package. 
 
7. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS 
 
 7A. Miscellaneous Oral Communications 
 7B. Miscellaneous Written Communications 
 
8. VERBAL REPORT BY INTERIM DISTRICT ADMINISTRATOR 
 
 This item gives the District Administrator the opportunity to present future agenda items. 
 
9.   PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION 
 
10. CLOSED SESSION 
 
 CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION 

[Paragraph (1) of subdivision (d) of Government Code Section 54956.9]; (two cases). 
 

(1) South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District v. Special District Risk Management 
Authority, Case No.: CV130473 

(2) South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District v. State Water Resources Control Board 
(Superior Court of Sacramento) case number 34-2012-80001209-CU-WM-GDS) 

 
11.  RETURN TO OPEN SESSION; REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION 
 
12. ADJORNMENT 

003



 Minutes of the 04-06-2016 SSLOCSD Board Meeting   
 

SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY SANITATION DISTRICT 
 

City of Arroyo Grande, City Council Chambers 
215 East Branch Street 

Arroyo Grande, California 93420 
  

Minutes of the Meeting of Wednesday April 06, 2016 
6 P.M. 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 

Present:  Chairman John Shoals, City of Grover Beach; Director Mary Lucey, Oceano 
Community Services District; Director Jim Hill, City of Arroyo Grande 

 
District Staff in Attendance: John Clemons, Acting District Administrator/Plant 

Superintendent; Gilbert Trujillo, District Legal Counsel; 
 

2. FLAG SALUTE 
  
3. PUBLIC COMMENTS ON ITEMS NOT APPEARING ON THE AGENDA 

 
Chairman Shoals opened the public comment period. 
 
Sharon Brown thanked John Clemons for his service as Acting District Administrator. 
 
There being no more public comment, Chairman Shoals closed the public comment 
period.  

  
4. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

4A.   Review and Approval of Minutes of Meeting of March 16, 2016 
4B.   Review and Approval of Warrants   
4C. Ratification of District Administrator’s Contract 
 
Director Hill pulled Item 4C for separate consideration. 
 
Acting District Administrator Clemons went over the Revisions made to the Warrant 
Register. 
 
Chairman Shoals opened the public comment period. 
 
April McLaughlin, Patty Welsh, Mark London and Sharon Brown gave public 
commented on the Warrant Register. 
 
There being no more public comment, Chairman Shoals closed the public comment 
period.  
 
 

 
 

004



 Minutes of the 04-06-2016 SSLOCSD Board Meeting   
 
 Motion:  Director Hill made a motion to approve Items 4A and 4B with the 
 exception of the $5,000 retainer paid to Downey Brand. 
 Second:  Chairman Shoals 
 Action:  Approved unanimously by roll call vote. 
 
4C. Approval of District Administrator’s Contract 
 
Acting District Administrator John Clemons pointed out that pages 5 and 7 are missing 
from the print outs. 
 
District Legal Counsel recommended that this item be brought back at the next meeting 
with a Staff Report and Resolution for ratification.  
 
Chairman Shoals opened the public comment period. 
 
Patty Welsh, Patricia Price, Sharon Brown and April McLaughlin commented on this 
item. 
 
There being no more public comment, Chairman Shoals closed the public comment 
period.  
 
 Motion:  Approval of District Administrators contract as completed with 
 additional two pages that were not included in the original package and direct 
 staff to bring back for ratification at the next meeting.   
 Second:  Chairman Shoals 
 Action:  Approved unanimously by roll call vote. 
  

5. PLANT SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT 
 
Superintendent Clemons presented the report.  He reported that the plant is in good 
standing.  He gave an update on maintenance, in progress, and training happening at the 
District.   
 
The Board had a discussion on recycled water. 
 
Chairman Shoals opened the public comment period. 
 
Ron Arnoldson gave comment. 
 
There being no more public comment, Chairman Shoals closed the public comment 
period.  

  
  Action: The Board received and filed the Plant Superintendent’s report. 
  
 
 
 
 

 
 

005



 Minutes of the 04-06-2016 SSLOCSD Board Meeting   
 
 
6. BOARD ACTION ON INDIVIDUAL ITEMS: 

 
 6A. Tax Roll 
 
 Staff recommended postponing the placement of wastewater treatment fees for the  
 customers of the Cities of Arroyo Grande (AG) and Grover  Beach (GB) on the   
 SLO County tax roll for fiscal year 2016-17. 
 
 Chairman Shoals opened the public comment period. 

 
Karen White, Sharon Brown, Patty Welsh, Julie Tacker, Patricia Price and Ron 
Arnoldson all commented on this item. 

    
There being no more public comment, Chairman Shoals closed the public  comment 
period.  

   
 Action:  Chairman Shoals directed staff to move all three agencies to the County 
 Tax Roll as was originally passed by Roll Call Vote at the meeting of October 21, 
 2015. 
  

 6B.   Election of Vice President 
 
 Staff recommended that the Board of Directors elect a Vice-Chair for the 2016   
 Calendar Year. 
 
 Chairman Shoals continued this item to a date uncertain. 
 
 Chairman Shoals opened the public comment period. 
 
 Julie Tacker and Patty Welsh gave comment. 
 

There being no more public comment, Chairman Shoals closed the public  comment 
period.  
 
 Action:  Chairman Shoals continued this item to a date uncertain. 
  

 6C.   February 2016 Legal Bills 
 
 Staff recommended that the Board discuss the legal bills of Gilbert Trujillo and   
 Wendy Stockton that were pulled from the Warrant Register at the meeting of   
 March 16, 2016. 
 
 Director Hill gave background on this item. His intent is to make sure that the   
 Board, acting as a whole, provides clear direction as to when legal work is    
 required.  His concerns were with prior billing.  He has no concerns with current   
 billing.  
   

 
 

006



 Minutes of the 04-06-2016 SSLOCSD Board Meeting   
 
 Legal Counsel does anticipate the bills being less going forward because a lot of   
 the charges were onetime costs such as the Knudson Report, Prop 218 Hearing   
 and creating templates to be used for future contracts. 
 
 Chairman Shoals opened the public comment period. 
 
 Julie Tacker gave comment. 
 

There being no more public comment, Chairman Shoals closed the public  comment 
period.  

   
 7. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS 

 
A. Miscellaneous Oral Communications 

 
  Director Hill would like to see the Rabobank payments.  He would like to  
  have the FEMA issue brought back as a status report.  He would also like a 
  status update on the meeting with the Coastal Commission. 
 
  Director Lucey asked that the complete Coastal Commission Application  
  be posted.  Chairman Shoals directed staff post a link to    
  the Coastal Commission website on the District website.  
 
  Acting District Administrator Clemons announced that the OCSD billing  
  has been mailed out. 
 

B. Miscellaneous Written Communications 
   
  None to report. 
   
8. VERBAL REPORT BY INTERIM DISTRICT ADMINISTRATOR 
   
 Acting District Administrator Clemons thanked the Board for giving him the opportunity  
 to move the District forward. 
    
9. CLOSED SESSION 
 

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION 
[Paragraph (1) of subdivision (d) of Government Code Section 54956.9]; (two cases). 

 
(1) South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District v. Special District Risk 

Management Authority, Case No.: CV130473 
(2) South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District v. State Water Resources 

Control Board (Superior Court of Sacramento) case number 34-2012-80001209-CU-
WM-GDS) 

 
 
 

 
 

007



 Minutes of the 04-06-2016 SSLOCSD Board Meeting   
 
 
10. PULIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION 
 
 Chairman Shoals opened the public comment period. 
 
 Mark London and Patty Welsh gave public comment. 
  
 Chairman Shoals closed the public comment period. 
 
 Legal Counsel addressed some of the questions asked of Mark London.  He clarified that 

there is no risk in collecting attorney fees in both these matters. 
 
11.  REPORT OUT OF CLOSED SESSION 
 
 The Board heard a status update from Legal Counsel and took no reportable action. 
  
12. ADJOURNMENT 

 
There being no further business to come before the Board, Chairman Shoals adjourned 
the meeting at approximately 8:10p.m. 
 
THESE MINUTES ARE DRAFT AND NOT OFFICIAL UNTIL APPROVED BY THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS AT A SUBSEQUENT MEETING. 
 

 
 

008



. BUDGET LINE ITEM WARRANT NO. ACCT ACCT BRKDN TOTAL

ALLIED ADMINISTRATORS DENTAL INSURANCE MAY 042016-1204 6025 909.42 909.42
AMERICAN BUSINESS MACHINES OFFICE SUPPLIES AND EXPENSE 272660 05 8045 437.11 437.11
ARAMARK UNIFORMS 04/08/16 06 7025 180.14 180.14
BC PUMP EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 30678 07 8030 244.62 244.62
BRENNTAG PLANT CHEMICALS BPI612647; BPI614737 08 8050 9,888.99 9,888.99
CAL ELECTRIC, SUPPLY EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 643698 09 8030 196.26 196.26
CALPERS UNFUNDED ACCRUED LIABILITY APRIL 10 6065 2,291.00 2,291.00
CCWT EQUIPMENT RENTAL 34182 11 7032 60.00 60.00
DOWNEY BRAND OUTSIDE LEGAL JANUARY 12 7070 13,846.63 13,846.63

RETAINER 5,000.00 5,000.00
ENGEL & GRAY, INC SOLIDS HANDLING 76915 13 7085 6,706.51 6,706.51
EPPENDORF LAB SUPPLIES 400909098414 14 8040 72.54 72.54
FARM SUPPLY HOUSEHOLD 35569 15 8035 117.42 117.42
FED EX CHEMICAL ANALYSIS 5-377-97049 16 7078 59.78 59.78
FERGUSON EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 3170487 17 8030 172.19 172.19
GARING TAYLOR & ASSOC FFR SPREADER 13573 18 2,062.50 2,167.50

SEWER PIPE BRIDGE 13572 26-8065 105.00
GAS COMPANY UTILITIES; GAS 03/04/16-04/04/16 19 7092 1,330.92 1,330.92
GILBERT A. TRUJILLO, ESQ. LEGAL COUNSEL MARCH 20 7070 3,062.50 4,532.50

LITIGATION MARCH 1,470.00
I.I. SUPPLY SAFETY SUPPLIES 38051 21 8056 20.94 20.94
JB DEWAR FUEL 812284 22 8020 319.15 319.15
JOHN BOY'S TOWING AUTOMOTIVE 33871 23 8032 125.00 125.00
JOHN F. RICKENBACH CONSULT. REDUNDANCY PROJECT 157 24 20-7080 11,400.00 11,400.00
KROESCHE/SCHINDLER, LLP OUTSIDE LEGAL 2242 25 7070 707.12 707.12
LEXIS NEXIS LEGAL COUNSEL MARCH 26 7071 250.00 250.00
MICHAEL K NUNLEY & ASSOC., INC. REDUNDANCY PROJECT 2085; 1933 27 20-7080 6,070.00 13,256.65

GRIT REMOVAL 2007 20-8010 3,213.75
HEADWORKS 2008 26-8065 3,972.90

MINERS HOUSEHOLD 28 8035 390.69 390.69
NBS TAX ROLL ADMINISTRATION 316000269 29 7080 2,493.29 2,493.29
OCSD WATER 01/18-03/18 30 7094 222.35 422.53

PROF. SERVICES 7079 200.18
PG&E ELECTICITY 03/10-04/07 31 7091 9,712.35 9,712.35
READY REFRESH HOUSEHOLD 16C0012917373 32 8035 6.02 6.02
ROYAL WHOLESALE ELECTRIC SCADA 431363; 431491; 431364;431514 33 20-8010 4,931.71 4,931.71
SHERMAN-WILLIAMS EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 1803-1 34 8030 303.45 303.45
SOUTH COUNTY SANITARY GARBAGE APRIL 35 7093 122.80 122.80
SPRINT COMMUNICATIONS, CELL PHONES 36 7014 610.02 610.02
STANLEY COMMUNICATIONS, ALARMS MAY 37 7011 64.06 64.06
STATE WATER RES. CONT. BOARD  ROMHILD CERT. 38 7068 230.00 230.00
SUPERIOR QUALITY COPIERS, INC OFFICE EQUIPMENT 39783 39 7045 466.78 466.78
TRIBUNE ADVERTISING GRIT REMOVAL, ORDINANCE 40 7005 1,551.22 1,551.22
VWR LAB SUPPLIES X4532742; X4510159; X4520735; X402747 41 8040 369.24 369.24
SUB TOTAL 95,966.55$        95,966.55$      

SO. SLO CO. SANITATION DISTRICT PAYROLL 03/04/16 42 22,847.01 63,394.13$      
PAYROLL 03/18/16 23,540.58
PAYROLL PROCESSING FEE MARCH 6090 206.35
CALPERS RETIREMENT MARCH 6060 13,457.87
UNFUNDED LIABILITY MARCH 6065 2,291.00
TELEPHONE FEB. & MARCH 7013 527.97
COMPUTER SUPPORT MARCH 7082 370.00
WEB HOSTING MARCH 7011 153.35

SO. SLO CO. SANITATION DISTRICT MEMBERSHIPS/TRAINING/SEMINARS PETTY CASH REIMBURSE 43 7050 17.00 17.00$             
SUB TOTAL 63,411.13$        63,411.13$      

PAYROLL 04/01/16 $25,084.42

GRAND TOTAL 159,377.68$      159,377.68$    

We hereby certify that the demands numbered serially from 042016-1204 to 042016-1243 together with the supporting evidence 
have been examined, and that they comply with the requirements of the SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY SANITATION
DISTRICT.  The demands are hereby approved by motion of the SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY SANITATION DISTRICT, 
together with warrants authorizing and ordering the issuance of checks numbered identically with the particular demands and
warrants.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS: DATE:

Chairman Board Member

Board Member Secretary

SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY SANITATION DISTRICT
WARRANT REGISTER 
04/20/2016  FY 2015/16

009



 
SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY 

SANITATION DISTRICT 
Post Office Box 339, Oceano, California  93475-0339 

1600 Aloha Place, Oceano, California 93445-9735 
Telephone (805) 489-6666  FAX (805) 489-2765 

www.sslocsd.org 
              
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
FROM: Amy Simpson, District Bookkeeper/Secretary 
VIA:  John Clemons, Acting District Administrator 
DATE: April 20, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: FINANCIAL REVIEW AS OF MARCH 31, 2016 
 
 
Overall Financial Summary 
 
As of March 31, 2016, the District has recognized total revenues of $2,398,552.  Of this amount, 
$1,981,371 is for operating revenues, and $417,181 is for non-operating revenues.  
 
District operating expenses totaled $2,602,563.  Operating expenses totaled $1,849,285 and non-
operating expenses totaled $753,278 as of March 31, 2016. 
 
Local Agency Investment Fund 
 
The balance in the District’s LAIF account was $2,416,712 as of March 31, 2016.   
 
County of San Luis Obispo Treasury Pool 
 
As of March 31, 2016, the reconciled cash balance with the County of San Luis Obispo Treasury 
Pool was $3,077,045. The County issues the majority of the District’s checks, and the majority 
of the District’s revenues are deposited with this agency.  As such, the County provides ‘banking 
services’ to the District and provides some accounting documents for internal control purposes. 
 
Rabobank Funds 
 
At March 31, 2016, the reconciled cash balance in the District’s Rabobank account totaled 
$77,297.  This account has been used to process the District’s contracted payroll provider service 
and other District expenditures.   

010



SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY 
SANITATION DISTRICT 

Post Office Box 339, Oceano, California  93475-0339 
1600 Aloha Oceano, California 93445-9735 

Telephone (805) 489-6666  FAX (805) 489-2765 
www.sslocsd.us 

 
  
 ______________________________________________________________________ 
 

Cash Balance at 02/29/16 5,378,728.69$    

Deposits 342,095.86$        
Warrant Register 03/02/16 (48,722.32)
Warrant Register 03/16/16 (52,564.07)
Legal Bills Pulled from W/R 14,910.00
Pay Roll 03/04/16 (22,948.96)
Pay Roll 03/18/16 (23,644.98)
Calpers (15,748.87)
Rabobank March Activity (1,051.32)

Total March Activity 192,325.34          

Cash Balance at 03/31/16 5,571,054.03       

Cash by Institution
CASH BALANCE 

@ 03/31/16
Cash with County Treasury 3,077,045.22
Cash with LAIF 2,416,712.25
Cash with Rabobank 77,296.56

5,571,054.03$     

011

http://www.sslocsd.us/


 
SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY 

SANITATION DISTRICT 
1600 Aloha Oceano, California 93445-9735 

Telephone (805) 489-6666 FAX (805) 489-2765 
 
 
 

             
 
Date:   April 15, 2016 
 
To:      SSLOCSD Board of Directors 
 
From:  John Clemons, District Superintendent 
 
Subject: Superintendent’s Report 
 
Operations 
 
Chart 1 – Plant Data 
April 
2016* 

INF 
Flow 
MGD 

Peak 
Flow
MGD 

INF 
BOD 
  mg/L 

EFF 
BOD 
mg/L 

INF 
TSS 
  mg/L 

EFF 
TSS 
  mg/L 

Fecal 
Coli 

Cl2 
lbs/day 

BOD 
REM 
Eff.% 

Average 2.07 3.27 425 25 410 28 2 210 94 
High 2.25 3.7 425 35 422 34 2 250  
Limit 5.0   40/60/90  40/60/90 2000  80 
 CY 2015 
Monthly 

         

Average 2.17 3.42 415 29 438 36 67 194 93 
High 2.42 4.8 495 43 494 47 255 402  

• * = Plant data through April 15th. 
 

 
Limit – 40/60/90 represent NPDES Permit limits for the monthly average, weekly 
average, and instantaneous value for plant effluent BOD and TSS. 
 
 
Maintenance 

• Installed PLC enclosure at headworks for SCADA system. 
• Repaired trough rinse-water assembly at Sec. Clarifier. 
• Repaired float at primary digester water seal. 
• Service brine flow meter. 

012



• Fabricated pipe support for FFR emergency piping project. 
• Removed motor and gear drive on centrifuge auger for repair.  
• Work Orders. 
 

In-Progress 
•  Garing, Taylor, and Associates is working with staff to review and ensure the 

integrity of the District’s A.G. Sewer Bridge. Preparing CEQA Documents. 
 
•   Staff is working with MKN and Associates Engineers on the installation of a 

grit removal system. Recommending Contractor Award. 
 
• Staff is preparing an RFP for installation of a mechanical bar screen in the 

headworks.  
 

• Secondary Process Redundancy Project – Submitting SRF application. 
Reviewing CDP application. 
 

• Satellite Water Resource Recovery Facilities Planning Feasibility Study. 
Project has been re-scoped.  
 

• Staff is conferring with PG&E representatives regarding possible energy 
conservation projects. Scheduled to meet with PG&E reps on Friday. 
 

• Staff is preparing a short-term emergency back-up plan in case of a FFR/sec. 
clarifier failure.  
 

• Staff is working to restore GIS manhole mapping system. 
 
 

  
 

Best regards, 
 

John Clemons 
Superintendent 
 
 
 
Attachment A:  Timeline for Cherry Ave Bridge Project 

013



Attachment A to Suppers Report 
 
 
 
 
Regarding the Cherry Ave. Pipe Bridge Maintenance Project 
 
Status as of 4/14/2016: 
 
Bio Assessment - completed recently. 
Structural Assessment - completed recently. (The bridge can take the expected loads from the 
scaffolding, workers, and equipment.) 
Lead and Asbestos Sampling - completed today (zero lead found)  
Lead and Asbestos Report – next week (asbestos results from lab) 
 
Projected Timeline: 
 
Mitigated Negative Declaration 
Consultant hired 4/20 
Document completed and advertised 5/15 
MND Adopted 6/15 
 
Streambed Alteration Agreement with Calif. Dept. of Fish and Wildlife 
Complete Submittal 6/16 
Draft Agreement 9/15 
 
Bid Package 
Advertise Project 7/13 
Open Bids 8/09 
Award Contract 8/22 
 
Implement Project 
Submittals in 9/14 
Initiate Work 9/15 
Complete Work 10/15 
 
 

014





 

SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY 
SANITATION DISTRICT 
Post Office Box 339, Oceano, California  93475-0339 
1600 Aloha Oceano, California 93445-9735 
Telephone (805) 489-6666  FAX (805) 489-2765 
www.sslocsd.us 
 

 ____________________________________________________________________ 
 Staff Report 
 
To: Board of Directors 
 
From: John Clemons III, Interim District Administrator 
 
Date: April 20, 2016 
 
Subject:  RATIFY THE APPOINTMENT OF GERHARDT HUBNER AS DISTRICT 

ADMINISTRATOR FOR THE SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY 
SANITATION DISTRICT AND AUTHORITZE THE BOARD 
CHAIRMAN TO EXECUTE THE EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the Board adopts by resolution: the appointment of Gerhardt Hubner as District 
Administrator, and authorizes the Board Chairman to execute the employment contract.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The District has employed three administrators over the last 30 years. An engineering consultant 
served as the top administrator at the District for 27 years as a contract employee. The 
engineering consultant resigned in February 2013; and the District contracted with a retired 
annuitant on a part-time basis, to fill the vacancy. In late 2013, the retired annuitant resigned. 
The District contracted with a second retired annuitant on a part-time basis in December 2013, 
and slightly increased the number of hours budgeted from six to ten hours per week in December 
2014. 
 
During the 2015 calendar year, the Board recognized that the weekly budgeted hours were too 
few given the increasing workload, and complex long-term capital projects on the horizon, some 
of which are regional. Although there were brief informal discussions regarding increasing the 
hours for the District Manager, it was not formally addressed by the Board. On August 5, 2015, 
the part-time District Manager resigned, effective September 11, 2015. 
 
With regard to hire of retired annuitants, as of January 2013, pension reform law states that 
retired annuitants under the California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS) can no 
longer be employed part-time as a permanent solution to business needs, nor be allowed to work 

Page 1 of 5 
015

http://www.sslocsd.us/


 

indefinitely performing the same functions with any CalPERS agency. The District is a member 
of CalPERS for retirement benefits. The appointment of a retired annuitant can only be for a 
"limited duration" and there is a restriction of no more than 960 hours worked per fiscal year. 
 
After discussion and public input at the September 2, 2015 Board meeting, the Board directed 
staff to pursue hiring a full-time District Manager using the contract services of an executive 
search firm to coordinate the recruitment, and to work with an HR Consultant to facilitate that 
process, including the development of a job description. 
 
At the September 16, 2015 Board meeting, the Board considered Employment Standards for a 
full-time District Manager, then specifically adopted Attachment "A" Job Description, and 
Attachment "C" amendment to the District Personnel Policy Manual – Chapter Seven.  
 
However, an inconsistency was noted with regard to references to the classification title. The title 
of District Manager was used on the staff report, resolution and job description versus the title of 
District Administrator being used in the District Personnel Policy Manual – Chapter Seven.  
 
Through research, it was determined that the Board had not taken any formal action to change 
the classification title from District Administrator to District Manager, even though District 
Manager classification title had been used since December 2013. Further, it was determined the 
reference to the position in the Board of Director's Bylaws is District Administrator, who serves 
as the Secretary to the Board. On September 25, 2015, the Board adopted the corrected job 
description title for the classification of District Administrator. 
 
At the September 16, 2015 District Board meeting, the Board approved the issuance of a Request 
for Proposals (RFP) for an executive search firm to provide consultant services to coordinate the 
recruitment and selection process. RFP's were sent to 16 firms for response.  
 
On November 4, 2015 the Board approved a contract with Cooperative Personnel Services-HR 
(CPS-HR) for the recruitment and selection of a full-time District Administrator. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Due to recruiting over the holidays, applicants had until early January 2016 to submit their 
interest for consideration in the first round of interviews. Staff at CPS-HR conducted in-depth 
reviews of all documents submitted by applicants, and in addition, held preliminary telephone 
interviews with qualified candidates. 
 
A limited number of highly qualified candidates' credentials were submitted to the Board in 
closed session on February 3, 2016. The Board directed the CPS-HR Project Manager to retain 
the services of subject matter experts to serve on an oral board panel. Interviews with the top 
candidates in held in late February with the oral board panel and the CPS-HR Project Manager. 
Of those interviewed, the subject matter experts panel recommended two candidates to be 
interviewed by the Board. 
 

Page 2 of 5 
016



 

The Board held oral interviews in closed session on March 2, 2015. The Board selected Gerhardt 
Hubner as the top candidate. The Board authorized the Board Chairman enter into contract 
negotiations with Mr. Hubner, which were successful. Mr. Hubner brings an extensive level of 
professional experience through a successful 25-year career in public sector administration. 
 
Mr. Hubner received a Bachelor of Science degree in Geological Sciences/Engineering Geology 
from San Diego State University, and completed postgraduate coursework in environmental law, 
water resources law, and planning law from Cal Poly San Luis Obispo; in addition he holds a 
management certificate from Cal State University Sacramento; and is licensed by the State of 
California as a Professional Geologist.  
 
Since November 2005, Mr. Hubner has served at the Deputy Director of Public Works – Water 
Resources for the Watershed Protection District County of Ventura where he supervises twenty 
management, engineering, professional, technical, and clerical staff, with an annual budget of $5 
million. 
 
Mr. Hubner has worked for both large and small public sector agencies having served as an 
administrator and a regulator. Mr. Hubner has state, regional and local administrative level 
experience, and has worked closely with Boards of Directors, as well as having negotiated 
regional agreements. One such agreement that resulted in a countywide permit issued by the 
State of California was when Mr. Hubner served as chair on the Ventura Countywide 
Stormwater Program encompassing ten cities, the county and the district he served. Through Mr. 
Hubner's ten years with the State of California Central Coast Regional Water Quality Control 
Board, he managed and led a group of engineers and scientists with regulatory oversight of over 
50 wastewater treatment facilities in San Luis Obispo and Santa Barbara Counties, including the 
South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District. Mr. Hubner's professional experience 
includes public sector customer service, policy development, budgeting and long range financial 
planning, employee relations, personnel management and community engagement. In addition 
his ten years of experience in San Luis Obispo County gives him a local perspective, as he 
performed inspections at area plants including at the District plant. His background and depth of 
experience make Mr. Hubner a highly qualified candidate as the District Administrator for the 
South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District. 
 
Terms of the Contract 
 
In the public sector executive administrators generally work directly for elected officials and 
serve at-will through an employment contract, which defines the terms and conditions of 
employment.  This is different from non-exempt staff which are appointed by an administrator, 
and serve a probationary period that once completed provides property rights for continued job 
security; once the probationary period has passed, non-exempt staff can only be terminated for 
cause. The at-will status of the exempt administrator means that cause is not necessary for a 
Board to take action to terminate employment, which happens for example when there is a 
significant difference in management philosophy, evidenced by the "any reason, or for no 
reason" clause referencing a severance package. A nine-month severance package is fairly 
common in the public sector; Mr. Hubner's contract has a six-month severance package. 
 

Page 3 of 5 
017



 

As is common in the public sector, the initial contract is for a period of three years, and provides 
a level of stability as long as performance expectations goals are met. An extension of the 
agreement requires formal action of the Board at a public meeting. The contract also clearly 
defines the scope of responsibilities, expectations, and benefits not only for the incumbent, but 
also for the public whom the administrator serves.  
 
The salary is $12,500 per month. In comparison, the average salary for top administrators of 
local similar agencies is $15,390; and of those agencies four provide additional salary averaging 
$1,350 per month. The majority of the benefits, such as health insurance, sick leave, and 
holidays, etc., are at a level equal to the Plant Superintendent. The retirement benefit is dictated 
by the Public Employee Pension Reform Act, and through CalPERS as a new employee Mr. 
Hubner will pay the full employee contribution rate. With regard to vacation, it is typical for the 
top administrative executives to receive a small bank of time to start, and to begin at an accrual 
rate higher than an incoming entry-level employee. The administrative leave is less than the 
industry average, which is typically 80 hours per year. Mr. Hubner’s contract provides that he 
will begin with a bank of 40 hours of vacation leave and 40 hours of administrative leave. Auto 
allowance in the local area averages in the range of $400-$500 per month, and Mr. Hubner's 
contract calls for $350 per month.  
 
At the April 6, 2016 meeting, the Board reviewed and approved the appointment and contract 
provisions through a minute order during open session. The item before the Board this evening is 
formal ratification of the appointment of and employment contract for Mr. Hubner.  
 
Options 
 

1. Adopt the resolution ratifying the employment contract for Gerhardt Hubner as District 
Administrator. 

2. Do not adopt the resolution ratifying the employment contract for Gerhardt Hubner. 
3. Provide further direction to staff. 

 
 
Fiscal Consideration 
 
The annual cost of the compensation package is estimated to be $207,120. The estimated cost for 
April through June (the remaining portion of fiscal year 2015-2016) is $43,810. The funds are 
available within the District's allocated 2015-16 fiscal year budget through Professional 
Services/District Administration account number 19-7076, which has a current available balance 
of $61,000. 
 
 
John Clemons III 
Interim District Administrator 
 
 
Resolution 2016-343 
Attachment A: Employment Contract for Gerhardt J. Hubner 

Page 4 of 5 
018



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-343 
A RESOLUTION OF THE SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO 

COUNTY SANITATION DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
RATIFYING THE APPOINTMENT OF AND AN EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT FOR 
GERHARDT HUBNER AS DISTRICT ADMINISTRATOR FOR THE SOUTH SAN 

LUIS OBISPO COUNTY SANITATION DISTRICT 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the former part-time District Manager resigned employment effective 
September 11, 2015; and  
 
 WHEREAS, on September 16, 2015, the South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation 
District (District) Board of Directors approved replacement of the part-time District Manager 
position with a full-time District Administrator; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Board desired to recruit for a new District Administrator; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Interim District Administrator was appointed to serve while the Board 
conducted a recruitment for District Administrator; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on March 3, 2016, the Board met in closed session and authorized the 
Board Chairman to negotiate an employment agreement with Gerhardt Hubner for the District 
Administrator position; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the negotiations resulted in an agreement as to the terms and conditions of 
employment; and  
 
 WHEREAS, on April 6, 2016, the Board reviewed the appointment of and employment 
agreement for Mr. Hubner in open session, and approved same through a minute order and 
directed the employment agreement be brought back for formal ratification; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation 
Board of Directors: 
 
1.  Adopts a base salary of $12,500 per month for the classification of District Administrator; and 
 
2. Ratifies the employment agreement for Gerhardt Hubner as District Administrator, attached 
hereto and incorporated as "Attachment A;" and 
 
3.  Authorizes and directs the Chairman of the Board to execute the employment agreement with 
Gerhardt Hubner. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the South San Luis County Sanitation 
District Board of Directors held this 20th day of April 2016.  
 
 

019



 On the motion of ___________________seconded by______________, and by the 
following roll call vote, to wit:  
 
AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
CONFLICTS:  
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION 
I do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a resolution duly and 
regularly adopted at a meeting of the South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District held on 
April 20, 2016. 
 
 
 ________________________________ 
 John Clemons III 
 Interim District Administrator 
 
 
 _________________________________ 
 John Shoals 
 Chairman Board of Directors, 
 South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District 
 
 
 _________________________________ 
 Gilbert A. Trujillo 
 District Co-Legal Counsel 
 

020



Attachment A 
for Resolution 2016-343

021



022



023



024



025



026



027



028





 
SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY 

SANITATION DISTRICT 
Post Office Box 339 Oceano, California  93475-0339 

1600 Aloha Oceano, California 93445-9735 
Telephone (805) 489-6666 FAX (805) 489-2765 

www.sslocsd.org 
 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

To:  Board of Directors 
From:  John Clemons, Interim District Administrator 
Date:  April 20, 2016  
 
Subject: GRIT REMOVAL CONTRACT 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors award the contract for installation of a Grit 
Removal System to Spiess Construction Company, and that the Board adopt a resolution 
directing the District Administrator to enter into an agreement with Spiess Construction 
Company, Inc. for the construction of a Grit Removal System at the Oceano Wastewater 
Treatment Plant. 

BACKGROUND 

On February 25, 2016 the Sanitation District began advertising for bids. The RFP was posted at 
the District website, in a local newspaper, on the Central Coast Builders’ Exchange, on the San 
Luis Obispo County Builders’ Exchange, on the Santa Maria Valley Contractors Association 
website, and on the ASAP Reprographics website. A pre-bid conference was held at the Plant on 
Wednesday March 9, 2016 at 2:00pm. Ten potential bidders were present at the pre-bid 
conference. The Bid opening was held at the Plant on Wednesday March 23, 2016 at 2:00pm. 
Nine bids were received by the 2pm deadline. The bids ranged from $492,100 to $719,553. The 
result of the bid opening are attached to this report. The engineer’s estimate for this project was 
$510,000-$540,000. The District has budgeted $560,000 for this project. 

DISCUSSION 

Spiess Construction Company posted the lowest qualified bid ($492,100.00). The bid was 
reviewed by Jon Hanlon of Michael K. Nunley and Associates (MKN) and by the Plant 
Superintendent. After review, MKN has recommended that the District award the project to 
Spiess Construction Company. District staff also recommends that Spiess Construction be 
awarded the project. 

 

 

029



 

FISCAL CONSIDERATIONS 

The bid by Spiess Construction Co. ($492,100) is well within the amount which has been 
budgeted for this project (560,000) 

 

OPTIONS 

1. Award the project to Spiess Construction Company. 
2. Amend the recommended contract. 
3. Reject recommendation and give Staff further direction. 

 
Best Regards, 
 
John Clemons III 
Superintendent/Interim District Administrator 
 
 
 
Resolution 2016-344 
Attachment A:  Agreement for Grit Removal Project 
 
Attachment B: Proposal from Speiss 
 
 
 
 

030



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-344 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SOUTH SAN LUIS 
OBISPO COUNTY SANITATION DISTRICT AUTHORIZING AND 

DIRECTING THE INTERIM DISTRICT ADMINISTRATOR TO 
ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH SPEISS CONSTRUCTION 

COMPANY, INC. FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF A GRIT 
REMOVAL SYSTEM AT THE OCEANO WASTEWATER 

TREATMENT PLANT 
 
 WHEREAS, South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District requires a 
contractor to construct a grit removal system project at the Oceano Wastewater 
Treatment Plant and does not have employee staff available to construct this 
project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in compliance with the California Public Contract Code, South 
San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District issued a Notice Inviting Bids and 
accompanying bid documents package to general contractors qualified to 
perform the needed work; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in response to a written question received from a potential 
proposer, the District issued a written addendum on March 22, 2016 to all 
persons, firms and corporations known to have received bidding documents for 
the project, to clarify parties not disqualified from submitting a bid as Prime 
Contractor; and 
 
 WHEREAS, sealed bids for the project were opened on March 23, 2016, 
revealing Speiss Construction Company, Inc., as the proposer that submitted the 
apparent lowest responsive, responsible bid for the project; and 
 

WHEREAS, Speiss Construction Company, Inc., is willing to sign an 
agreement to construct the project with the District, in a form acceptable to 
District Counsel; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of South 
San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District as follows: 
 

1. An Agreement – SSLOCSD Grit Removal Project with Speiss 
Construction Company, Inc. is hereby approved in substantially the 
form attached hereto as Exhibit “1;” and 

2. The Interim District Administrator, or his/her designee, is hereby 
authorized and directed to execute the Agreement on behalf of the 
District, to take all steps necessary to implement the project, and, if 
appropriate, to enter into amendments to the Agreement necessary to 
implement the project. 

 

Atty rev. 2015 
 
 

031



2 
 

  PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the South San 
Luis Obispo County Sanitation District held April 6, 2016. 
 
 
 
              
                                                                               Board Chair 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
        APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
DISTRICT SECRETARY 

       BY:    
                DISTRICT COUNSEL 
 
 
        CONTENTS: 
 
        BY:     
                 DISTRICT ADMINISTRATOR 
 
         

Atty rev. 2015 
 
 

032



AGREEMENT 
 

SSLOCSD GRIT REMOVAL PROJECT 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachment A  
for Resolution 2016-344

033



DOCUMENT 00500 
 

AGREEMENT 
 
 
 
THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this              day of April, 2016, by and between 
 

Speiss Construction Company Co., Inc., a California Corporation, 
 
hereinafter referred to as "Contractor," and the South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District 
in the County of San Luis Obispo, California, hereinafter referred to as “District” "Owner" or 
“SSLOCSD.” 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 
That for and in consideration of the promises and agreements hereinafter made and exchanged, 
Owner and Contractor agrees as follows: 
 

1. That Contractor shall complete the work generally described as follows: SSLOCSD GRIT 
REMOVAL PROJECT in accordance with the Contract Documents therefore, as prepared 
by District. 

 
2. That Owner will pay Contractor progress payments and the final payment, in accordance 

with the provisions of the contract documents, with warrants drawn on the appropriate fund 
or funds as required, at the prices bid on the proposal form accepted by Owner, and set 
forth in this agreement.  

 
Total Bid of   Four Hundred Ninety-two Thousand One Hundred Dollars 
    and zero______________________ Cents. 
 
Contract Price in Figures $492,100.00___________________________________ 
 
 3. Contractor agrees to complete said work within the contract time of one hundred sixty (160) 

WORKING DAYS, from the day following the issuance of the Notice to Proceed, and 
approved extensions thereof, to the satisfaction of Owner before final payment is made. 

 
 4. Time is of the essence on this contract. 
 
 5. It is mutually understood and agreed that time is of the essence of this agreement and that 

it is difficult to ascertain the amount of damages required to properly compensate Owner for 
failure by Contractor to comply with all the contract requirements within the time fixed in the 
agreement.  

 
 In accordance with California Government Code, Section 53069.85, the amount of 

liquidated damages to be paid to Owner for each day completion is delayed beyond the time 
for completion, shall be FIVE HUNDRED ($500) dollars.  Contractor hereby acknowledges 
that it has reviewed said provisions relating to liquidated damages and the amount thereof, 

2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachment A  
for Resolution 2016-344

034



and accepts the same as being reasonable under the circumstances and as a material part 
of the consideration for this contract.  Contractor also acknowledges that progress payments 
made after the scheduled completion date do not constitute a waiver of liquidated damages.   
 
Provisions in this contract relating to damages shall be read consistently with Public Contract 
Code §7102, pertaining to damages in construction contracts of public agencies. 

 
Pursuant to Public Contract Code §7105, unless this contract is financed by revenue bonds, 
nothing in this contract shall be read to require Contractor to assume responsibility in excess 
of five percent of the contract amount for repairing or restoring damages caused by an act 
of God.  If required by the invitation for bids, Contractor shall procure insurance to cover 
such losses.  This contract may be terminated in the event of such damages as provided by 
Part 6 of Document 00700.  

 
 6. That, in accordance with Section 1774 of the California Labor Code, Contractor will pay, and 

will require subcontractors to pay, employees on the project a salary or wage at least equal 
to the prevailing salary or wage established for such work as set forth in the wage 
determinations and wage standards applicable to this work, contained in or referenced in 
the contract documents.  The general rate of per diem wages (prevailing wage) for each 
craft, classification or type of worker needed to execute the contract is on file at the office of 
the SSLOCSD General Manager. 

 
 7. That, in accordance with Section 1775 of the California Labor Code, Contractor shall forfeit 

to Owner, as a penalty, not more than two hundred dollars ($200) for each day, or portion 
thereof, for each worker paid, either by Contractor or any subcontractor, less than the 
prevailing rates as determined by the Director of the California Department of Industrial 
Relations for the work. 

 
8. That, in accordance with Section 1777.5 of the Labor Code, this agreement fixes the 

responsibility of compliance with said Section 1777.5 for all apprenticeable occupations with 
the prime Contractor. 

 
 9. That, except as provided in Section 1815 of the California Labor Code, in the performance 

of the work not more than eight (8) hours shall constitute a day's work, and not more than 
forty (40) hours shall constitute a week's work; that Contractor shall not require more than 
eight (8) hours of labor in a day nor more than forty (40) hours of labor in a week from any 
person employed by Contractor or any subcontractor; that Contractor shall conform to 
Division 2, Part 7, Chapter 1, Article 3 (Section 1810, et seq.) of the California Labor Code; 
and that Contractor shall forfeit to Owner, as a penalty, the sum of twenty-five dollars ($25) 
for each worker employed in the execution of the work by Contractor or any subcontractor 
for each day during which any worker is required or permitted to labor more than eight (8) 
hours in violation of said Article 3. 

 
10. That Contractor shall carry workers' compensation insurance and require subcontractors to 

carry workers' compensation insurance as required by the California Labor Code.  Further, 
the Contractor shall secure the payment of workers’ compensation to its employees as 
provided in California Labor Code §§1860 and 3700. 

 

3 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachment A  
for Resolution 2016-344

035



11. That Contractor shall have furnished, prior to execution of the contract, three bonds 
approved by Owner: (1) the faithful performance bond in the amount of one-hundred percent 
(100%) of the contract price, to guarantee the faithful performance of the work; (2) the labor 
and material bond in the amount of one-hundred percent (100%) of the contract price, to 
guarantee payment of all claims for labor and materials furnished; and (3) the guarantee 
and defective material bond in the amount of ten percent (10%) of the contract price, to 
guarantee the one year maintenance of public improvements.  This contract shall not 
become effective until such bonds are supplied to and approved by Owner. 

 
12. That Contractor, prior to execution of the contract shall comply with the following Department 

of Industrial Relations requirements. 
• Pursuant to Public Contract Code §6109, no contractor shall perform work on a public 

works project with a subcontractor who is ineligible to work on a public works project 
under §§ 1777.1 or 1777.7 of the California Labor Code.  

• No contractor or subcontractor may be listed on a bid proposal for a public works project 
(submitted on or after March 1, 2015) unless registered with the Department of Industrial 
Relations pursuant to Labor Code section 1725.5 [with limited exceptions from this 
requirement for bid purposes only under Labor Code section 1771.1(a)]. 

• No contractor or subcontractor may be awarded a contract for public work on a public 
works project (awarded on or after April 1, 2015) unless registered with the Department 
of Industrial Relations pursuant to Labor Code section 1725.5. 

• This project is subject to compliance monitoring and enforcement by the Department of 
Industrial Relations. 

• In the manner required by Labor Code §1776 and accompanying rules, Contractor shall 
keep accurate payroll records of wages paid, keep specified records available for 
inspection, use forms or provide information as required by the Division of Labor 
Standards Enforcement, file records, redact records, inform the District of the location of 
the records, and comply with records requests. 

 
13. That this agreement, by reference, includes the contract documents defined in Document 

00700, General Conditions.  Terms of this agreement relating to modification, amendment 
or termination appear in Parts 5 and 6 of Document 00700. 

 
14. That Contractor agrees to devote the hours necessary to perform the services set forth in 

this agreement in an efficient and effective manner.  Contractor may represent, perform 
services for and be employed by additional individuals or entities, in Contractor's sole 
discretion, as long as the performance of these extra-contractual services does not interfere 
with or present a conflict with District's business. 

 
15. The agreement shall be binding on and shall inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors, 

administrators, successors and assigns of the parties hereto, but nothing in this section shall 
be construed as consent by District to any assignment of this agreement or any interest in 
this agreement. 

 
 
 
 

4 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachment A  
for Resolution 2016-344

036



 
(REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK.) 

5 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachment A  
for Resolution 2016-344

037



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, said Contractor and the SSLOCSD, have caused the names of said 
parties to be affixed hereto, each in triplicate, the day and year first above written. 
 

 
South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation 

District   
 SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY, CALIFORNIA 
  
  
 BY: _________________________________ 
 John Clemons, Interim District Administrator 
  

CONTRACTOR 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

  
BY: _________________Scott A. Coleman  

 
BY: _________________________________ 

NAME NAME 
PRESIDENT SECRETARY & TREASURER 
COMPANY COMPANY 

  
DISTRICT 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
  

BY:  ________________________________ BY: _________________________________ 
DISTRICT CLERK DISTRICT COUNSEL 

DATE:  ______________________________ DATE:  ______________________________ 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
S:\Engineering\FRONT DESK\Project Templates\SPECS-Table of Contents REV 10-2014.doc 
 
Rev 2014 

* * * END OF DOCUMENT 00500 * * * 
 

6 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachment A  
for Resolution 2016-344

038



FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE BOND 

SSLOCSD GRIT REMOVAL PROJECT 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachment A  
for Resolution 2016-344

039



DOCUMENT 00610 
 

FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE BOND 
 
WHEREAS, the South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District, State of California, and 
____________________________________ (hereinafter designated as the "principal") have 
entered into an agreement whereby principal agrees to install and complete certain designated 
public improvements, which said agreement, dated _______________, 2016, and identified as 
SSLOCSD GRIT REMOVAL PROJECT, is hereby referred to and made a part hereof; and 
 
WHEREAS, said principal is required under the terms of said agreement to furnish a bond for the 
faithful performance of said agreement. 
 
NOW, therefore, we, the principal and __________________________, as surety, are held and 
firmly bound unto the South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District hereinafter called "District," 
in the penal sum of ____________________________________________ Dollars 
($_______________) lawful money of the United States, for the payment of which sum well and 
truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, successors, executors, administrators, jointly and 
severally, firmly by these presents.   
 
The condition of this obligation is such that if the above bounded principal, his or its heirs, executors, 
administrators, successors, or assigns, shall in all things stand to and abide by, and well and truly 
keep and perform the covenants, conditions, and provisions in the said agreement and any 
alteration thereof made as therein provided, on his or their part, to be kept and performed at the 
time and in the manner therein specified, and in all respects according to their true intent and 
meaning, and shall indemnify and save harmless District, its officers, agents, and employees as 
therein stipulated, then this obligation shall become null and void; otherwise it shall be and remain 
in full force and effect. 
 
As a part of the obligation secured hereby and in addition to the face amount specified therefore, 
there shall be included costs and reasonable expenses and fees, including reasonable attorney's 
fees, incurred by District in successfully enforcing such obligation, all to be taxed as costs and 
included in any judgment rendered. 
 
The surety hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, alteration or addition to 
the terms of the agreement or to the work to be performed there under or the specifications 
accompanying the same shall in any manner affect its obligations on this bond, and it does hereby 
waive notice of any such change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the 
agreement or to the work or to the specifications. 

8 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachment A  
for Resolution 2016-344

040



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument has been duly executed by principal and surety above 
named, on _______________, 2016. 
 
 
ADDRESS OF CONTRACTOR FOR SERVICE OF DOCUMENTS UNDER BOND AND UNDER-
TAKING LAW: 
 
______________________________________     (SEAL) 
Principal 
______________________________________     (SEAL) 
 
______________________________________ 
Signature of Principal    Title 
 
 
ADDRESS OF SURETY FOR SERVICE OF DOCUMENTS UNDER BOND AND UNDERTAKING 
LAW 
 
_____________________________________     (SEAL) 
Surety 
______________________________________     (SEAL) 
 
______________________________________ 
Signature for Surety                          Title 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
By: ___________________________________ 
 District Counsel 
 
 
S:\Engineering\FRONT DESK\Project Templates\SPECS-Table of Contents REV 11-2013.doc 
 
ATTY REV 1999 
 
 

* * * END OF DOCUMENT 00610 * * * 

9 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachment A  
for Resolution 2016-344

041



LABOR AND MATERIAL BOND 

SSLOCSD GRIT REMOVAL PROJECT 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachment A  
for Resolution 2016-344

042



DOCUMENT 00620 
 

LABOR AND MATERIAL BOND 
 

 
WHEREAS, the South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District, State of California and 
_______________________________________ (hereinafter designated as “principal”) have 
entered into an agreement whereby principal agrees to install and complete certain designated 
public improvements, which said agreement, dated _________________, 2016, and identified as 
project as SSLOCSD GRIT REMOVAL PROJECT, is hereby referred to and made a part hereof; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, under the terms of said agreement, principal is required before entering upon the 
performance of the work, to file a good and sufficient payment bond with the South San Luis Obispo 
County Sanitation District to secure the claims to which reference is made in Title 1 (commencing 
with Section 8000) of Part 6 of Division 4 of the Civil Code of the State of California. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, said principal and the undersigned as corporate surety, are held firmly bound 
unto the South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District and all contractors, subcontractors, 
laborers, materialmen and other persons employed in the performance of the aforesaid agreement 
and referred to in the aforesaid Code of Civil Procedure in the sum of 
______________________________Dollars ($_________), for materials furnished or labor 
thereon of any kind, or for amounts due under the Unemployment Insurance Act with respect to 
such work or labor, that said surety will pay the same in amount not exceeding the amount 
hereinabove set forth, and also in case suit is brought upon this bond, will pay, in addition to the 
face amount thereof, costs and reasonable expenses and fees, including reasonable attorney’s 
fees, incurred by District in successfully enforcing such obligation, to be awarded and fixed by the 
court, and to be taxed as costs and to be included in the judgment therein rendered. 
 
It is hereby expressly stipulated and agreed that this bond shall inure to the benefit of any and all 
persons, companies and corporations entitled to file claims under Title 1 (commencing with 
Section 8000) of Part 6 of Division 4 of the Civil Code, so as to give a right of action to them or 
their assigns in any suit brought upon this bond. 
 
Should the condition of this bond be fully performed, then this obligation shall become null and void, 
otherwise it shall be and remain in full force and effect. 
 
The surety hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, alteration or addition to 
the terms of said agreement or the specifications accompanying the same shall in any manner 
affect its obligations on this bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension, 
alteration or addition. 
 
 

11 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachment A  
for Resolution 2016-344

043



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument has been duly executed by principal and surety above 
named, on _______________, 2016. 
 
 
ADDRESS OF CONTRACTOR FOR SERVICE OF DOCUMENTS UNDER BOND AND UNDER-
TAKING LAW: 
 
______________________________________     (SEAL) 
Principal 
______________________________________     (SEAL) 
 
______________________________________ 
Signature of Principal    Title 
 
 
ADDRESS OF SURETY FOR SERVICE OF DOCUMENTS UNDER BOND AND UNDERTAKING 
LAW 
 
_____________________________________     (SEAL) 
Surety 
______________________________________     (SEAL) 
 
______________________________________ 
Signature for Surety                          Title 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
By: ___________________________________ 
 District Counsel 
 
 
S:\Engineering\FRONT DESK\Project Templates\SPECS-Table of Contents REV 11-2013.doc 

 
ATTY REV 2013 
 

* * * END OF DOCUMENT 00620 * * * 

12 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachment A  
for Resolution 2016-344

044



GUARANTEE AND DEFECTIVE  
MATERIAL BOND 

SSLOCSD GRIT REMOVAL PROJECT 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachment A  
for Resolution 2016-344

045



DOCUMENT 00680 
 

GUARANTEE AND DEFECTIVE MATERIAL BOND 
 
 
 
WHEREAS, the South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District, State of California and 
_______________________________________ (hereinafter designated as "principal") have 
entered into an agreement whereby principal agrees to install and complete certain designated 
public improvements, which said agreement, dated _________________, 2016, and identified as 
project as SSLOCSD GRIT REMOVAL PROJECT, is hereby referred to and made a part hereof; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, said principal is required under the terms of said agreement to furnish a bond for the 
one year maintenance of public improvements of said agreement. 
 
NOW, therefore, we, the principal and _________________________________, as surety, are 
held and firmly bound unto the South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District hereinafter called 
"District," in the penal sum of _____________________________________________ dollars 
($_____________) lawful money of the United States, for the payment of which sum well and truly 
to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, successors, executors and administrators, jointly and 
severally, firmly by these presents. 
 
The condition of this obligation is such that if the above bounded principal, his or its heirs, executors, 
administrators, successors, or assigns, shall in all things stand to and abide by, and well and truly 
keep and perform the covenants, conditions, and provisions in the said agreement and any 
alteration thereof made as therein provided, on his or their part, to be kept and performed at the 
time and in the manner therein specified, and in all respects according to their true intent and 
meaning, and shall indemnify and save harmless District, its officers, agents, and employees as 
therein stipulated, then this obligation shall become null and void; otherwise it shall be and remain 
in full force and effect. 
 
As a part of the obligation secured hereby and in addition to the face amount specified therefore, 
there shall be included costs and reasonable expenses and fees, including reasonable attorney's 
fees, incurred by District in successfully enforcing such obligation, all to be taxed as costs and 
included in any judgment rendered. 
 
The surety hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, alteration or addition to 
the terms of the agreement or to the work to be performed there under or the specifications 
accompanying the same shall in any manner affect its obligations on this bond, and it does hereby 
waive notice of any such change, extension of time, alteration or addition to the terms of the 
agreement or to the work or to the specifications. 
 
 

 

14 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachment A  
for Resolution 2016-344

046



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument has been duly executed by principal and surety above 
named, on _______________, 2016. 
 
 
ADDRESS OF CONTRACTOR FOR SERVICE OF DOCUMENTS UNDER BOND AND UNDER-
TAKING LAW: 
 
______________________________________     (SEAL) 
Principal 
______________________________________     (SEAL) 
 
______________________________________ 
Signature of Principal    Title 
 
 
ADDRESS OF SURETY FOR SERVICE OF DOCUMENTS UNDER BOND AND UNDERTAKING 
LAW 
 
_____________________________________     (SEAL) 
Surety 
______________________________________     (SEAL) 
 
______________________________________ 
Signature for Surety                          Title 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
By: ___________________________________ 
 District Counsel 
 
 
S:\Engineering\FRONT DESK\Project Templates\SPECS-Table of Contents REV 11-2013.doc 
 
ATTY REV 1999 
 
 

* * * END OF DOCUMENT 00680 * * * 
 
 

15 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachment A  
for Resolution 2016-344

047



Attachment B 
Proposal from Speiss

048



Attachment B 
Proposal from Speiss

049



Attachment B 
Proposal from Speiss

050



Attachment B 
Proposal from Speiss

051



Attachment B 
Proposal from Speiss

052



Attachment B 
Proposal from Speiss

053



Attachment B 
Proposal from Speiss

054



Attachment B 
Proposal from Speiss

055



Attachment B 
Proposal from Speiss

056



Attachment B 
Proposal from Speiss

057



Attachment B 
Proposal from Speiss

058



Attachment B 
Proposal from Speiss

059



Attachment B 
Proposal from Speiss

060



Attachment B 
Proposal from Speiss

061



Attachment B 
Proposal from Speiss

062



Attachment B 
Proposal from Speiss

063



Attachment B 
Proposal from Speiss

064



Attachment B 
Proposal from Speiss

065



Attachment B 
Proposal from Speiss

066



Attachment B 
Proposal from Speiss

067



Attachment B 
Proposal from Speiss

068



Attachment B 
Proposal from Speiss

069



Attachment B 
Proposal from Speiss

070



Attachment B 
Proposal from Speiss

071



Attachment B 
Proposal from Speiss

072



Attachment B 
Proposal from Speiss

073



Attachment B 
Proposal from Speiss

074



Attachment B 
Proposal from Speiss

075



Attachment B 
Proposal from Speiss

076



Attachment B 
Proposal from Speiss

077



Attachment B 
Proposal from Speiss

078



Attachment B 
Proposal from Speiss

079



Attachment B 
Proposal from Speiss

080



 
 
 
 
 

P.O. Box 1604 
Arroyo Grande CA 93421 
805 904 6530     tel 
www.mknassociates.us 

March 24, 2016 
 
John L. Clemons 
Plant Superintendent / Interim General Manager 
South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District 
1600 Aloha Place 
Oceano, CA 93445 

Dear Mr. Clemons, 
 
Re: Grit Removal Project Recommendation for Award 
 
Michael K. Nunley & Associates, Inc. (MKN) has reviewed the bids received for the South San Luis 
Obispo County Sanitation District Grit Removal Project. The District received nine (9) bids ranging 
from $492,100 to $719,553. The Engineer’s estimate was $510,000-$540,000. 
 
Speiss Construction Company was the Apparent Low Bidder at $492,100. We have reviewed their 
submitted bid forms and find that the bid meets District requirements for a successful bid. MKN 
recommends that the District award the project to Speiss Construction Co. 
 
I have attached via email a Notice of Award form for you use, and a copy of the Agreement to be 
provided to Speiss for execution. 
 
If you have any questions, please contact me at jhanlon@mknassociates.us or by phone at (805) 
904-6530 x103. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
 
Jon Hanlon, PE 
 
Attachments: 
Bid tabulation 
Agreement (attached electronically) 
Notice of Award form (attached electronically) 

081



NOTICE OF AWARD 

Date of Issuance:    

Owner:   Owner's Contract No.:  

Engineer:  Engineer's Project No.: N/A 

Project:  Contract Name:  

Bidder:  

Bidder’s Address:  

TO BIDDER: 

 You are notified that Owner has accepted your Bid dated March 23, 2016 for the above Contract, and that you 
are the Successful Bidder and are awarded a Contract for:  

South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District Grit Removal Project 
 

The Contract Price of the awarded Contract is:  $ 492,100 

        [x] unexecuted counterparts of the Agreement accompany this Notice of Award, and one copy of the 
Contract Documents accompanies this Notice of Award.  

You must comply with the following conditions precedent within 15 days of the date of receipt of this Notice of 
Award: 
 

1. Deliver to Owner the Agreement, fully executed by Bidder. 

2. Deliver with the executed Agreement(s) the Contract security [e.g., performance and payment bonds] 
and insurance documentation as specified in the Instructions to Bidders and General Conditions. 

 
 Failure to comply with these conditions within the time specified will entitle Owner to consider you in default, 
annul this Notice of Award, and declare your Bid security forfeited.   

 Within ten days after you comply with the above conditions, Owner will return to you one fully executed 
counterpart of the Agreement, together with any additional copies of the Contract Documents as indicated in the 
General Conditions. 

Owner:  

  
                         Authorized Signature 

By:  

Title:  
 
Copy: Engineer 
  

Notice of Award. 
Page 1 of 1 

 
082



SSLOCSD Grit Removal Project Bid Results 3/24/2016

Speiss 
Construction 

Co., Inc.

Brough 
Construction, 

Inc.

Fluid 
Resource 

Management

Souza 
Construction, 

Inc.

Special 
Service 

Construction

Specialty 
Construction 

Inc.

Cushman 
Contracting 
Corporation

Maino 
Construction 

Company, Inc.

Newton 
Construction & 
Management

QTY UNIT Total Cost Total Cost Total Cost Total Cost Total Cost Total Cost Total Cost Total Cost Total Cost

1 Mobilization 1 LS $17,500.00 $6,180.00 $12,068.53 $27,000.00 $24,064.00 $15,000.00 $67,000.00 $46,550.00 $4,868.00

2 Furnish and Install Equipment 
Foundations 1 LS $55,100.00 $30,607.00 $37,332.88 $41,000.00 $38,676.00 $40,675.00 $67,000.00 $61,460.00 $46,024.00

3 Furnish Grit Separator and 
Classifier Equipment 1 LS $302,000.00 $331,397.00 $316,382.80 $342,000.00 $313,620.00 $329,900.00 $296,000.00 $322,900.00 $354,870.00

4 Installation of Grit Separator 1 LS $17,900.00 $10,490.00 $22,688.34 $125,000.00 $23,502.00 $32,850.00 $27,000.00 $15,150.00 $54,462.00

5 Furnish and Install Site Piping 
and Appurtenances 1 LS $73,600.00 $74,502.00 $120,409.43 $51,000.00 $134,757.00 $189,800.00 $163,000.00 $210,725.00 $189,490.00

6 Furnish and Install Site 
Concrete Flatwork 1 LS $20,100.00 $41,175.00 $41,862.31 $44,000.00 $101,111.00 $35,900.00 $59,800.00 $28,100.00 $52,913.00

7 Furnish and Install Electrical 
and Instrumentation 1 LS $5,900.00 $10,300.00 $19,737.26 $11,000.00 $15,156.00 $9,400.00 $9,200.00 $15,000.00 $16,926.00

$492,100.00 $504,651.00 $570,481.55 $641,000.00 $650,886.00 $653,525.00 $689,000.00 $699,885.00 $719,553.00 

Bidder

ITEM DESCRIPTION

GRAND TOTAL

083





 
SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY 

SANITATION DISTRICT 
Post Office Box 339 Oceano, California  93475-0339 

1600 Aloha Oceano, California 93445-9735 
Telephone (805) 489-6666 FAX (805) 489-2765 

www.sslocsd.org 
 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

To:  Board of Directors 
From:  John Clemons, Interim District Administrator 
Date:  April 20, 2016  
 
Subject: CHERRY AVE. BRIDGE MND CONTRACT 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors adopt a resolution authorizing the District 
Administrator to enter into an agreement with Kevin Merk Associates, LLC for 
Environmental Review Services for the Cherry Ave. Bridge Project. 

BACKGROUND 

The Sanitation District is planning to perform maintenance on the Cherry Ave. sewer bridge in 
Arroyo Grande. The scope of work for this project includes removing paints and debris from the 
existing structure, and replacing anti corrosion coating. In order to acquire a Streambed 
Alteration Agreement (SAA) from the California Department of Fish and Wildlife, the Sanitation 
District must complete the necessary CEQA documents. KMA performed the initial biological 
assessment for this project. 

DISCUSSION 

KMA has submitted a scope of work and cost estimate proposal of $9,190 to prepare a Mitigated 
Negative Declaration pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act for this project. This 
does not include an optional additional amount of $2,270 for printing, noticing, mailing and 
filing. The preparation of this document is critical to support the issuance of the SAA. Since 
KMA performed the current biological assessment for this project Staff believes that they are 
uniquely qualified to prepare the CEQA Documents. 

FISCAL CONSIDERATIONS 

This project was originally budgeted to cost $209,000 in the FYE 2015 budget. Since that time 
the District has spent $20,500 on this project. This project was budgeted at $180,000 for the 
current fiscal year. The funds for this project will come from Fund 26-8061- Structure/Grounds 
Major Maintenance. 

 

084



OPTIONS 

1. Approve the agreement and adopt the resolution. 
2. Do no approve the recommendation and give Staff further direction. 

 
Best Regards, 
 
John Clemons III 
Superintendent/Interim District Administrator 
 
 
 
 
Resolution 2016-345  
Attachment A:  Agreement for Professional Services- Environmental Review Services 
 
 

085



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-345 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SOUTH SAN LUIS 
OBISPO COUNTY SANITATION DISTRICT AUTHORIZING AND 

DIRECTING THE INTERIM DISTRICT ADMINISTRATOR OR 
DESIGNEE TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH KEVIN 
MERK ASSOCIATES, LLC, FOR ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 

SERVICES FOR THE CHERRY AVENUE SEWER BRIDGE 
MAINTENANCE PROJECT 

 
 WHEREAS, the District needs to perform maintenance consisting of 
removing some vegetation, installing a scaffold and repairing and painting its 
Cherry Avenue sewer bridge in Arroyo Grande; and 
 

WHEREAS, in order to proceed with the project, the District needs to 
perform environmental review under the California Environmental Quality Act 
(“CEQA”); and   
 

WHEREAS, the District currently does not have staff available to complete 
these tasks; and 

 
WHEREAS, the District has obtained a proposal dated April 4, 2016 from 

Kevin Merk Associates, LLC, offering to prepare documentation under the 
California Environmental Quality Act; and 

 
WHEREAS, based on Consultant’s qualifications, experience, and 

familiarity with the project (having previously completed a biological study of the 
area), it appears that Consultant’s proposal best meets District’s needs for the 
project; and 

 
 WHEREAS, hiring Kevin Merk Associates, LLC to provide environmental 
review services for District is consistent with District’s Purchasing Guidelines, as 
adopted by Resolution 2014-314, which provide that the District Manager is the 
District’s agent for purchasing services less than $45,000 and establish 
objectives including that District services procurement be efficient, at lowest 
possible cost, of a quality to assure efficient running of the wastewater plant, and 
give a local preference in contracts with a bid price less than $45,000. 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of South 
San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District as follows: 
 

1. An AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES - 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW SERVICES with Kevin Merk Associates, LLC is 
hereby approved in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit “1;” and 

2. The Interim District Administrator, or his/her designee, is hereby 
authorized and directed to execute the Agreement on behalf of the District, to 

Atty rev. 2015 
 
 

086



2 
 

take all steps necessary to implement the project, and, if appropriate, to enter 
into amendments to the Agreement necessary to implement the project. 
 
  PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the South San 
Luis Obispo County Sanitation District held April 20, 2016. 
 
 
 
              
                                                                               Board Chair 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
        APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
DISTRICT SECRETARY 

       BY:    
                DISTRICT COUNSEL 
 
 
        CONTENTS: 
 
        BY:     
                 DISTRICT ADMINISTRATOR 
 
         

Atty rev. 2015 
 
 

087



 
AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES - ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW SERVICES 

 
This Agreement is made on                   , 2016, by and between Kevin Merk Associates, LLC, a 
California Limited Liability Company (“Consultant”), and the South San Luis Obispo County 
Sanitation District (“District”), in Oceano, California, based on the following recitals: 

1. The District needs to perform maintenance consisting of removing some vegetation, 
installing a scaffold and repairing and painting its Cherry Avenue sewer bridge in Arroyo Grande; and 

2. In order to proceed with the project, the District needs to perform environmental review 
under the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”); and   

3. The District currently does not have staff available to complete these tasks; and 
4. The District has obtained a proposal dated April 4, 2016 from Consultant, offering to 

prepare documentation under the California Environmental Quality Act; and 
5. Based on Consultant’s qualifications, experience, and familiarity with the project (having 

previously completed a biological study of the area), it appears that Consultant’s proposal best meets 
District’s needs for the project; and 
 6.        Hiring Consultant to provide environmental review services for District is consistent with 
District’s Purchasing Guidelines, as adopted by Resolution 2014-314, which provide that the District 
Manager is the District’s agent for purchasing services less than $45,000 and establish objectives 
including that District services procurement be efficient, at lowest possible cost, of a quality to assure 
efficient running of the wastewater plant, and give a local preference in contracts with a bid price less 
than $45,000. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED: 

1. Recitals true.  The above recitals are true. 
2. General. 
 2.01.  Term and Termination.    The term of this contract is 6 months, beginning on the 

date first written above.  This contract may be extended by consent of the parties.  This contract may 
be terminated for breach of its terms or conditions, or because of discovery of any act which violates 
local, state or federal law.  Termination is effective 14 days after mutual deposit of notice as specified 
in this Agreement. 

2.02.  Services to be Performed.  Consultant shall determine the method, details and 
means of providing environmental review services related to the District’s proposed Cherry Avenue 
sewer bridge maintenance project.  More specifically, Consultant agrees to perform the specific 
services listed in Exhibit “A.” 

 2.03  District’s Duties.  District’s duties under this Agreement are to cooperate with 
Consultant in the performance of the contract and timely pay invoices. 

2.04. Payment.  Payment terms under this Agreement are listed in Exhibit “B.”  
2.05. Insurance.  Consultant shall provide insurance as listed in Exhibit “C.”  
2.06. Exhibits.  Exhibits “A,” “B,” and “C” are attached and incorporated. 

 3. Consultant’s Obligations. 
  3.01.  Minimum Amount of Service.  Consultant shall devote sufficient time to perform 
services under this agreement efficiently and effectively. Consultant  may represent, perform services 
for and be employed by additional individuals or entities, in Consultant’s sole discretion, as long as the 
performance of these extra-contractual services does not interfere with or present a conflict with 
District's business. 
  3.02.  Tools and Equipment.  Except as otherwise stated in this Agreement, Consultant 
will supply all tools and equipment necessary to perform this Agreement. 

Attachment A  
for Resolution 2016-345

088



  3.03.  Status.  Consultant (including its employees) is an independent contractor.  No 
employer/employee relationship exists between Consultant and the District.  Consultant's assigned 
personnel shall not be entitled to any benefits payable to employees of the District.   The District is 
not required to make any deductions or withholdings from the compensation payable to Consultant 
under this agreement. 
  3.04.  Indemnification. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Consultant shall 
indemnify, defend (with independent counsel approved by the District) and hold harmless the District, 
and its directors, officers, and employees from and against all liabilities (including without limitation all 
claims, losses, damages, penalties, fines, and judgments, associated investigation and administrative 
expenses, and defense costs, including but not limited to reasonable attorneys’ fees, court costs and 
costs of alternative dispute resolution) regardless of nature or type that arise out of, pertain to, or 
relate to the negligence, reckless, or willful misconduct of the Consultant or the acts or omissions of 
an employee, agent or subcontractor of the Consultant.  The provisions of this paragraph survive 
completion of the services or the termination of this contract.  The provisions of this Section are not 
limited by the provisions of the Section relating to insurance. 
 
 4.  Miscellaneous 

4.01.  Notices.  All communication relating to the day-to-day activities of this Agreement 
shall be exchanged between a designated representative of the District and a representative of 
Consultant, listed below.  All notices shall be addressed as follows unless a written change is filed 
with the District: 
 
To District:      To Consultant: 
Attn. District Administrator    Kevin Merk Associates, LLC 
P.O. Box 339      P.O. Box 318 
Oceano, CA  93475     San Luis Obispo, CA  93406 
 
If the designated Representative or address of either party changes during the term of this 
agreement, a written notice shall be given to the other party prior to the effective date of change.  Any 
written notices required under this agreement shall be effective five (5) days after deposit into United 
States mail, postage prepaid, addressed to the designated Representative, or upon confirmation of 
receipt of delivery if another notification process is used. 
  4.02.  Compliance With Laws, etc.  Consultant shall comply with all laws, including but 
not limited to the rules and policies of the District, in performing this agreement. 
  4.03.  Integration.  This agreement constitutes the entire agreement of the parties with 
respect to the subject matter.  All modifications, amendments, or waivers of the terms of this 
agreement must be in writing and signed by the appropriate representatives of the parties.   

  4.04. Interpretation.  This agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of 
the State of California. 

4.05. Jurisdiction.  Jurisdiction and venue of all disputes over the terms of this 
agreement shall be in the County of San Luis Obispo, State of California. 

4.06.  Warranty of authority.  Each person signing this agreement on behalf of a party 
warrants that he or she has authority to do so. 

4.07.  No Waiver. Failure to enforce with respect to a default shall not be construed as 
a waiver. 

4.08.  Severability.  The provisions of this agreement are severable.  If any part of this 
agreement is held invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of the agreement shall 
remain in full force and effect unless amended or modified by mutual written consent of the parties. 

4.09.  Submittals.  In addition to any other submittals required by this agreement, 

Attachment A  
for Resolution 2016-345

089



Consultant shall submit copies of its current business license and current certificate of workers 
compensation coverage to the District before beginning work on this project. 
  4.10 Prevailing Wage. Prevailing Wage.  If applicable, Consultant and all 
subconsultants are required to pay the general prevailing wage rates of per diem wages and overtime 
and holiday wages determined by the Director of the Department of Industrial Relations under 
Section 1720 et seq. of the California Labor Code.  The Director's determination is on file and open 
to inspection at www.dir.ca.gov and is referred to and made a part hereof; the wage rates therein 
ascertained, determined and specified are referred to and made a part hereof as though fully set 
forth herein. 
  4.11  Exclusive Ownership.  All plans, specifications, reports, electronic media, records, 
and other design documents prepared by Contractor pursuant to this agreement shall be the property 
of the District; District is entitled to full and unrestricted use of such plans, specifications, reports and 
other design documents prepared by Contractor pursuant to this agreement; such plans, 
specifications, reports, and other design documents prepared by Contractor pursuant to this 
agreement shall be used exclusively on this project and shall not be used on any other work unless 
deemed necessary by the District. 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this agreement is executed by the parties on the date first written 
above. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CONSULTANT    SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY     
      SANITATION DISTRICT  
 
 
__________________________  ______________________________ 
By:        By:   
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
District Counsel 
 
 
 
 

Attachment A  
for Resolution 2016-345

090



 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
Consultant will prepare a mitigated negative declaration (“MND”) for the Cherry Avenue sewer bridge 
maintenance project, based on the project description contained in Consultant’s proposal dated April 
4, 2016.   
 
The MND effort will focus on the following impact issue areas: • Biological Resources; • 
Geology/Soils (erosion and sedimentation) • Hazards and Hazardous Materials.   The MND will be 
prepared in accordance with CEQA and the State CEQA Guidelines.  
 
The MND will provide an analysis of the impact areas identified above as having potentially 
significant impacts and needing a greater level of review. The analysis for the remainder of the 
impact issue areas will be incorporated into the MND under the assumption that they will be 
considered “Less Than Significant”. The analysis for these impact areas and the studies prepared in 
support of the initial CEQA determination will be peer reviewed for quality and consistency, and 
updated as necessary.  
 
The MND will focus on these issue areas as outlined in Appendix G of the CEQA Guidelines: 
 

• Review of Biological Resources Assessment prepared by Consultant and others.  Make 
full use of all existing analyses to ensure a complete and up-to-date reporting of the presence 
and likelihood of critical habitat and special status plant and wildlife species on-site and an 
analysis of impacts to these resources as a result of project implementation.  

• Geologic and Soils Hazards. Evaluate the potential for geologic hazards and soils to impact 
the project based on review of the existing available information. Geologic hazards will be 
reviewed in accordance with the applicable provisions of CEQA and District/County/City 
planning documents. This assessment will be based on review of the studies and documents 
prepared by others for the project and other relevant information provided by the project team 
including site plans, grading plans and proposed erosion controls.  Obtain copies of recent 
environmental documents, fault reports, and geotechnical studies for relevant previous 
development projects from the District/County/City, and preform a site visit to review the site 
terrain and geologic conditions. It is anticipated that the geotechnical analysis will identify 
potential geologic hazards that could impact the project such as: • Slope instability and 
landsliding; • Grading and Soil Erosion; • Seismic Settling and Fault Rupture Potential; • 
Strong Ground Motion; • Liquefaction and Seismic Settlement; and • Settlement and 
Subsidence from Fluid Withdraw. These issue areas will be independently reviewed and 
incorporated into the impact analysis as part of the MND process. Utilize existing industry 
standards to deal with this issue area.  

• Hazards and Hazardous Materials. Perform environmental impact analysis necessary to 
identify potential hazards related to the use, storage, containment and possibility of release of 
hazardous materials (including, but not limited to, lead based paint) related to the preventative 
maintenance activities proposed as part of the project. This includes identification of industry 
standard mitigation measures to address containment protocols and response to hazardous 
material release related to the proposed pipe maintenance.  

 
The MND will include the following tasks:   

• Review existing documents prepared for the project (including, but not limited to the project 
designs, technical reports prepared for the project, project permit applications and 

Attachment A  
for Resolution 2016-345

091



regulatory agency stipulations, similar CEQA determinations from other agencies, County 
and City General Plan and Zoning Code, exemplary staff reports, project maps, digital and 
GIS files, etc.).   

• Coordinate and communicate between the District, project team members and consultants, 
regulatory agencies (e.g., California Department of Fish and Wildlife – “CDFW”), as well as 
other agencies, consultants and organizations involved in the project to ensure timely 
completion of project milestones.  

• Project environmental review (includes coordination and communication with the District to 
determine any up-front needs for CEQA determinations and land use permits, and 
preparation of the appropriate CEQA environmental determinations - assumed to be a 
Mitigated Negative Declaration).Coordinate with regulatory agencies (e.g., CDFW) to 
determine Responsible Agency concerns and issues to ensure a comprehensive 
environmental review and to ensure the CEQA determination meets their needs. Project 
CEQA determination will focus on key impact issue areas discussed above. This will 
include the preparation of the Initial Study, preparation of a Mitigated Negative Declaration 
and Notice of Intent, and preparation of a Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 
(MMRP) per CEQA Guideline requirements.  

• Project management duties. This includes attendance at up to two (2) meetings, 
communication with District staff, project team members, response to comments and 
questions as applicable, a site visit to tour the project location and assess any 
environmental constraints, establishing timetables for milestone completion, etc.  

 
 
Consultant to provide a timetable for this work for approval by the District Administrator. 
 
For this scope of work it is assumed that the District will print, distribute, notice and complete all filing 
requirements for the project. Document printing, distribution, noticing and filing is an optional task 
which can be fulfilled at the price shown in Exhibit “B” upon District request. 

Attachment A  
for Resolution 2016-345

092



EXHIBIT “B” 
 

 Consultant will provide the services in accordance with this Agreement for a not-to-exceed fee 
of up to $9,190.  This fee assumes: 
 
• No extraordinary or undeveloped issues are associated with the project not previously identified in 
the biological report (environmental, design or community related) or issues such as Cultural 
Resources that would require additional investigation or analysis;  
 
• Project timeframes will depend on the ability of District staff (and CDFW, if applicable) to expedite 
review of draft project deliverables and will depend on the nature of the comments and the level of 
effort required to respond to comments and revise the draft documents;  
 
• Volume of comments received from the public and reviewing agencies on the project do not exceed 
reasonable levels and the level of effort required to respond to comments is not unreasonable. 
Consultant will work with the District and their representatives to establish these assumptions; 
 
 • Unless the optional task is selected, we will not be responsible for required noticing, filing, or 
document distribution;  
 
• Document deliverables will not exceed identified budget. Consultant will work with the District to 
finalize requested deliverables; and  
 
• Consultant will finalize project schedule and timing upon receipt of all relevant application materials, 
including the final project site plan and any other requested information. 
 
 
Consultant will invoice District for services on a monthly basis.  Additional work not included within 
the proposal or exceeding $9,190 will be completed only upon written authorization from District.  
Additional work may include the optional task of necessary noticing, printing, distribution and filing as 
required by the California Environmental Quality Act, for the not-to-exceed cost of up to $2,520. 

Attachment A  
for Resolution 2016-345

093



EXHIBIT “C” 
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

 
Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contact insurance against 
claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in 
connection with the performance of the work hereunder by the Consultant, his/her agents, 
representatives, or employees.   

 
  A. Minimum Scope of Insurance 
 
   Coverage shall be at least as broad as: 
  
   1. Insurance Services Office Commercial General Liability 

coverage (occurrence form CG 0001). 
 
   2. Insurance Services Office Business Auto Coverage Form 

Number CA 0001, Code 1 (any auto). 
 
   3. Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the State of 

California and Employer's Liability Insurance.   
 
   4. Errors and Omissions liability insurance appropriate to the 

Consultant's profession.  Architects' and engineers' coverage is to be endorsed to 
include contractual liability.   

 
  B. Minimum Limits of Insurance 
 
   Consultant shall maintain limits no less than: 
 
   1. General Liability - $1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury, 

personal injury and property damage.  If Commercial General Liability Insurance or 
other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the general aggregate limit 
shall apply separately to this project/location or the general aggregate limit shall be 
twice the required occurrence limit.   

 
   2. Automobile Liability - $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury 

and property damage.   
 
   3. Employee's Liability - $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury 

or disease.   
 
   4. Errors and Omissions Liability - $1,000,000 per occurrence.   
 
  C. Deductibles and Self-insured Retentions 
 
   Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and 

approved by the District.  At the option of the District, either: the insurer shall 
reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions as respects the 
District, its trustees, officers, employees and volunteers; or the Consultant shall 

Attachment A  
for Resolution 2016-345

094



provide a financial guarantee satisfactory to the District guaranteeing payment of 
losses and related investigations, claim administration and defense expenses.   

 
  D. Other Insurance Provisions 
 
   The commercial general liability and automobile liability policies are 

to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 
 
   1. The District, its trustees, officers, employees and volunteers 

are to be covered as insureds as respects: liability arising out of work or operations 
performed by or on behalf of the Consultant; or automobiles owned, leased, hired 
or borrowed by the Consultant.   

 
   2. For any claims related to this project, the Consultant's 

insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the District, its trustees, 
officers, employees and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by 
the District, its trustees, officers, employees or volunteers shall be excess of the 
Consultant's insurance and shall not contribute with it.   

 
   3. Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be 

endorsed to state that coverage shall not be canceled by either party, except after 
thirty (30) days' prior written notice stating the title of this contract has been given 
to the District.  All notices provided pursuant to this Agreement shall be given 
to the District representative  listed for notice in this agreement and shall 
specify the title of this Agreement.  Notice may be given by overnight mail, 
facsimile with confirmation of receipt, or certified mail with return-receipt requested.  
In the case of a reduction in coverage, the Consultant shall provide thirty (30) days’ 
prior written notice as provided in this subparagraph. 

 
  E. Acceptability of Insurers 
 
   Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best's 

rating of no less than A:VII, unless otherwise acceptable to the District.   
 
  F. Verification of Coverage 
 
   Consultant shall furnish the District with original certificates and 

amendatory endorsements effecting coverage required by this clause.  The 
endorsements should be on forms provided by the District or on other than the 
District's forms provided those endorsements conform to District requirements.  All 
certificates and endorsements are to be received and approved by the District 
before work commences.  The District reserves the right to require complete, 
certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements effecting 
the coverage required by these specifications at any time.   

 

Attachment A  
for Resolution 2016-345

095





 
SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY 

SANITATION DISTRICT 
Post Office Box 339 Oceano, California  93475-0339 

1600 Aloha Oceano, California 93445-9735 
Telephone (805) 489-6666 FAX (805) 489-2765 

www.sslocsd.org 
 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

To:  Board of Directors 
From:  John Clemons, Interim District Administrator 
Date:  April 20, 2016  
 
Subject: CONTRACT FOR OUTFALL INSPECTION 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors authorize the District Administrator to enter 
an agreement with Aquatic Bioassay Inc. to perform an Ocean Outfall Inspection on the 
District’s Ocean Outfall. 

BACKGROUND 

The Sanitation District is required to perform an inspection of its ocean outfall every three years 
(NPDES Permit).  The District shares the cost of the inspection with the City of Pismo Beach 
because Pismo shares usage of the outfall. The last inspection was performed in the spring of 
2013. Staff has requested proposals from Tenera Environmental Services (TES) and from 
Aquatic Bioassay and Consulting Laboratories Inc. (ABC) 

DISCUSSION 

ABC Inc. submitted a proposal with a cost of $40,325. Tenera did not submit a proposal. ABC 
performed the 2013 outfall inspection for the Sanitation District. ABC Inc.’s proposal is attached 
to this report.  

FISCAL CONSIDERATIONS 

The cost of the inspection will be $40,325. Pismo Beach will pay fifty percent of the cost. The 
cost to the Sanitation District will be $20,163. The District budgeted $40,000 for ocean outfall 
maintenance in the FY 2015-16 budget. The cost is well within the budgeted amount. 

 

 

 

096



 

 

OPTIONS 

1. Authorize the District administrator to execute the contract with ABC Inc. and adopt the 
attached resolution. 

2. Do not approve Staff’s recommendation. 

3. Approve Staff’s recommendation with amendments. 

 
Best Regards, 
 
John Clemons III 
Superintendent/Interim District Administrator 
 
 
Resolution 2016-346 
Attachment A: Agreement for Professional Services – Receiving Water Monitoring Survey 
 
Attachment B: Proposal for Professional Services from Aquatic Bioassay & Consulting 
 
 
 

097



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-346 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SOUTH SAN LUIS 
OBISPO COUNTY SANITATION DISTRICT AUTHORIZING AND 

DIRECTING THE INTERIM DISTRICT ADMINISTRATOR OR 
DESIGNEE TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH AQUATIC 

BIOASSAY & CONSULTING LABORATORIES, INC. FOR 
RECEIVING WATER MONITORING SERVICES 

 
 WHEREAS, the District needs to complete a receiving water monitoring 
survey in compliance with Federal and State requirements; and   
 

WHEREAS, the District currently does not have staff available to complete 
this task; and 
 

WHEREAS, the District has obtained a proposal for professional services 
dated April, 2016 from Aquatic Bioassay and Consulting Laboratories, Inc. 
(“Consultant”), offering to provide all of the services necessary to successfully 
complete the District’s receiving water monitoring survey, including program 
management, sample collection, laboratory analysis, data management, 
statistical analysis, and reports that are ready for submittal to local, state and 
federal agencies; and 
 

WHEREAS, based on Consultant’s qualifications and experience 
preparing similar surveys for municipal entities since 1988, it appears that 
Consultant’s proposal best meets District’s needs for the project; and 
 

WHEREAS, hiring Consultant to provide receiving water monitoring 
survey services for District is consistent with District’s Purchasing Guidelines, as 
adopted by Resolution 2014-314, which provide that the District Manager is the 
District’s agent for purchasing services less than $45,000 and establish 
objectives including that District services procurement be efficient, at lowest 
possible cost, of a quality to assure efficient running of the wastewater plant, and 
give a local preference in contracts with a bid price less than $45,000. 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of South 
San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District as follows: 
 

1. An AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES – 
RECEIVING WATER MONITORING SURVEY with Aquatic Bioassay & 
Consulting Laboratories, Inc. is hereby approved in substantially the form 
attached hereto as Exhibit “1;” and 

2. The Interim District Administrator, or his/her designee, is hereby 
authorized and directed to execute the Agreement on behalf of the District, to 
take all steps necessary to implement the project, and, if appropriate, to enter 
into amendments to the Agreement necessary to implement the project. 

Atty rev. 2015 
 
 

098



2 
 

 
  PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the South San 
Luis Obispo County Sanitation District held April 20, 2016. 
 
 
 
              
                                                                               Board Chair 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
        APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
DISTRICT SECRETARY 

       BY:    
                DISTRICT COUNSEL 
 
 
        CONTENTS: 
 
        BY:     
                 DISTRICT ADMINISTRATOR 
 
         

Atty rev. 2015 
 
 

099



Attachment A for  
Resolution 2016-346 
 
AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES – RECEIVING WATER MONITORING SURVEY 

 
This Agreement is made on                   , 2016, by and between Aquatic Bioassay & Consulting 
Laboratories, Inc., a California Corporation (“Consultant”), and the South San Luis Obispo County 
Sanitation District (“District”), in Oceano, California, based on the following recitals: 

1. The District needs to complete a receiving water monitoring survey in compliance with 
Federal and State requirements; and   

2. The District currently does not have staff available to complete this task; and 
3. The District has obtained a proposal for professional services dated April, 2016 from 

Consultant, offering to provide all of the services necessary to successfully complete the District’s 
receiving water monitoring survey, including program management, sample collection, laboratory 
analysis, data management, statistical analysis, and reports that are ready for submittal to local,  
state and federal agencies; and 

4. Based on Consultant’s qualifications and experience preparing similar surveys for 
municipal entities since 1988, it appears that Consultant’s proposal best meets District’s needs for 
the project; and 
 5.        Hiring Consultant to provide receiving water monitoring survey services for District is 
consistent with District’s Purchasing Guidelines, as adopted by Resolution 2014-314, which provide 
that the District Manager is the District’s agent for purchasing services less than $45,000 and 
establish objectives including that District services procurement be efficient, at lowest possible cost, 
of a quality to assure efficient running of the wastewater plant, and give a local preference in 
contracts with a bid price less than $45,000. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED: 

1. Recitals true.  The above recitals are true. 
2. General. 
 2.01.  Term and Termination.    The term of this contract is 6 months, beginning on the 

date first written above.  This contract may be extended by consent of the parties.  This contract may 
be terminated for breach of its terms or conditions, or because of discovery of any act which violates 
local, state or federal law.  Termination is effective 14 days after mutual deposit of notice as specified 
in this Agreement. 

2.02.  Services to be Performed.  Consultant shall determine the method, details and 
means of providing receiving water monitoring survey services for the District.  More specifically, 
Consultant agrees to perform the specific services listed in Exhibit “A.” 

 2.03  District’s Duties.  District’s duties under this Agreement are to cooperate with 
Consultant in the performance of the contract and timely pay invoices. 

2.04. Payment.  Payment terms under this Agreement are listed in Exhibit “B.”  
2.05. Insurance.  Consultant shall provide insurance as listed in Exhibit “C.”  
2.06. Exhibits.  Exhibits “A,” “B,” and “C” are attached and incorporated. 

 3. Consultant’s Obligations. 
  3.01.  Minimum Amount of Service.  Consultant shall devote sufficient time to perform 
services under this agreement efficiently and effectively. Consultant  may represent, perform services 
for and be employed by additional individuals or entities, in Consultant’s sole discretion, as long as the 
performance of these extra-contractual services does not interfere with or present a conflict with 
District's business. 

100



  3.02.  Tools and Equipment.  Except as otherwise stated in this Agreement, Consultant 
will supply all tools and equipment necessary to perform this Agreement. 
  3.03.  Status.  Consultant (including its employees) is an independent contractor.  No 
employer/employee relationship exists between Consultant and the District.  Consultant's assigned 
personnel shall not be entitled to any benefits payable to employees of the District.   The District is 
not required to make any deductions or withholdings from the compensation payable to Consultant 
under this agreement. 
  3.04.  Indemnification. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Consultant shall 
indemnify, defend (with independent counsel approved by the District) and hold harmless the District, 
and its directors, officers, and employees from and against all liabilities (including without limitation all 
claims, losses, damages, penalties, fines, and judgments, associated investigation and administrative 
expenses, and defense costs, including but not limited to reasonable attorneys’ fees, court costs and 
costs of alternative dispute resolution) regardless of nature or type that arise out of, pertain to, or 
relate to the negligence, reckless, or willful misconduct of the Consultant or the acts or omissions of 
an employee, agent or subcontractor of the Consultant.  The provisions of this paragraph survive 
completion of the services or the termination of this contract.  The provisions of this Section are not 
limited by the provisions of the Section relating to insurance. 
 
 4.  Miscellaneous 

4.01.  Notices.  All communication relating to the day-to-day activities of this Agreement 
shall be exchanged between a designated representative of the District and a representative of 
Consultant, listed below.  All notices shall be addressed as follows unless a written change is filed 
with the District: 
 
To District:      To Consultant: 
Attn. District Administrator    Aquatic Bioassay & Consulting Laboratories, Inc. 
P.O. Box 339      29 N. Olive St. 
Oceano, CA  93475     Ventura, CA  93001 
 
If the designated Representative or address of either party changes during the term of this 
agreement, a written notice shall be given to the other party prior to the effective date of change.  Any 
written notices required under this agreement shall be effective five (5) days after deposit into United 
States mail, postage prepaid, addressed to the designated Representative, or upon confirmation of 
receipt of delivery if another notification process is used. 
  4.02.  Compliance With Laws, etc.  Consultant shall comply with all laws, including but 
not limited to the rules and policies of the District, in performing this agreement. 
  4.03.  Integration.  This agreement constitutes the entire agreement of the parties with 
respect to the subject matter.  All modifications, amendments, or waivers of the terms of this 
agreement must be in writing and signed by the appropriate representatives of the parties.   

  4.04. Interpretation.  This agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of 
the State of California. 

4.05. Jurisdiction.  Jurisdiction and venue of all disputes over the terms of this 
agreement shall be in the County of San Luis Obispo, State of California. 

4.06.  Warranty of authority.  Each person signing this agreement on behalf of a party 
warrants that he or she has authority to do so. 

4.07.  No Waiver. Failure to enforce with respect to a default shall not be construed as 
a waiver. 

4.08.  Severability.  The provisions of this agreement are severable.  If any part of this 
agreement is held invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of the agreement shall 

101



remain in full force and effect unless amended or modified by mutual written consent of the parties. 
4.09.  Submittals.  In addition to any other submittals required by this agreement, 

Consultant shall submit copies of its current business license and current certificate of workers 
compensation coverage to the District before beginning work on this project. 
  4.10 Prevailing Wage. Prevailing Wage.  If applicable, Consultant and all 
subconsultants are required to pay the general prevailing wage rates of per diem wages and overtime 
and holiday wages determined by the Director of the Department of Industrial Relations under 
Section 1720 et seq. of the California Labor Code.  The Director's determination is on file and open 
to inspection at www.dir.ca.gov and is referred to and made a part hereof; the wage rates therein 
ascertained, determined and specified are referred to and made a part hereof as though fully set 
forth herein. 
  4.11  Exclusive Ownership.  All plans, specifications, reports, electronic media, records, 
and other design documents prepared by Contractor pursuant to this agreement shall be the property 
of the District; District is entitled to full and unrestricted use of such plans, specifications, reports and 
other design documents prepared by Contractor pursuant to this agreement; such plans, 
specifications, reports, and other design documents prepared by Contractor pursuant to this 
agreement shall be used exclusively on this project and shall not be used on any other work unless 
deemed necessary by the District. 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this agreement is executed by the parties on the date first written 
above. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CONSULTANT    SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY     
      SANITATION DISTRICT  
 
 
__________________________  ______________________________ 
By:        By:   
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
District Counsel 
 
 
 
 

102



 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 
Consultant to provide a timetable for the work below for approval by the District 
Administrator. 
 
Using applicable government protocols, Consultant will provide complete benthic sediment 
monitoring (chemistry sampling and chemical analysis), benthic biota monitoring (biota sampling and 
biota analysis), outfall inspection, and reporting services related to District’s wastewater treatment 
facility in Oceano, California.  These services will be provided on time-is-of-essence basis so that 
District’s government reporting obligations will be timely completed and fines avoided. 
 
Specifically, Consultant will complete the following tasks: 
 
Benthic Sediment Monitoring  
 
Chemistry Sampling  
 
Sampling procedures for the SSLOCSD will be conducted in strict adherence to Techniques for 
Sampling and Analyzing the Marine Macrobenthos (USEPA, 1978a); Quality Assurance and Quality 
Control (QA/QC) for 301 (h) Monitoring Programs: Guidance on Field and Laboratory Methods (Tetra 
Tech, 1986); and The Southern California 2013 Regional Marine Monitoring Survey Field Operations 
Manual (SCCWRP, 2013a). Single sediment samples will be collected at 5 stations (RSW-001, 
RSW-002S, RSW-002N, RSW-003 and RSW-004) using a 0.1 m22 cm of sediment will be collected 
from each grab and placed into a pre-cleaned glass container, labeled and stored on wet ice for 
transport to the chemistry laboratory. Sediments for particle size analysis will be placed in a whirl pak 
and placed on wet ice.  
 
Chemical Analyses  
 
Consultant will obtain chemical analyses conducted by PHYSIS Environmental Laboratories located 
in Anaheim, CA. PHYSIS is fully accrediated by the State of California (ELAP certification No. 2769) 
and will provide data of the highest quality, coupled with the lowest method detection limits of any 
laboratory on the west coast. All chemistry data will be reported in raw form on a dry weight basis. 
The respective constituents to be measured by PHYSIS for the SSLOCSD monitoring effort, method 
SOPs, method detection and reporting limits are:  
 
Particle Size: SM 2560 D <2 to 2000 μm 
 
Sediment Sulfides at pH 7: 
 

• Total Sulfides Plumb, 1981/TERL 0.2 0.4 mg/kg 
 

• Dissolved Sulfides Plumb, 1981/TERL 0.2 0.4 mg/kg 
 
BOD: SM 5210 B (M) mg/kg 
 
Metals: 

103



 
• Arsenic (As) EPA 6020 0.025 0.05 μg/g 

 
• Cadmium (Cd) EPA 6020 0.025 0.05 μg/g 

 
• Chromium (Cr) EPA 6020 0.025 0.05 μg/g 

 
• Copper (Cu) EPA 6020 0.025 0.05 μg/g 

 
• Lead (Pb) EPA 6020 0.025 0.05 μg/g 

 
• Nickel (Ni) EPA 6020 0.025 0.05 μg/g 

 
• Silver (Ag) EPA 6020 0.025 0.05 μg/g 

 
• Zinc (Zn) EPA 6020 0.025 0.05 μg/g 

 
Chromium +6: SM 3500-Cr D 0.05 0.1 mg/kg 
 
Mercury: EPA 245.7 0.00001 0.00002 μg/g 
 
Total Kjeldahl Nitrogen: EPA 351.2 5 mg/kg 
 
Ammonia: SM 4500-NH3 D 0.03 0.03 mg/kg 
 
Nitrate: SM 4500-NO3 E 0.01 0.05 mg/kg 
 
Total Organic Carbon: SM 5310 B 0.01 0.02 % Dry Weight 
 
Percent Solids: EPA 160.3 0.1 0.05 % 
 
 
Samples for sediment particle size distribution will be analyzed by laser diffraction using a Horiba 
particle size analyzer and in accordance with Standard Methods 2560 D (APHA, 2005). The analyzer 
is capable of measuring particle sizes ranging from clay (<2μm) up to course sand (2000μm).  
 
Benthic Biota Monitoring  
 
Biota Sampling  
 
Sampling for biota will be conducted using the same approach and at the same five monitoring sites 
described above under the chemistry sampling section. Five replicate grab samples will be collected 
and handled separately for a total of 25 infauna samples. Sediments to be analyzed for infauna will 
be sieved through a 1.0 millimeter screen. The retained organisms and larger sediment fragments 
will be washed into half gallon plastic bottles, relaxed with a magnesium sulfate solution for one half 
hour, then preserved with 10% buffered formalin.  
 
Biota Analysis  

104



 
Screened and preserved sediments collected in the field will be delivered to the Aquatic Bioassay 
laboratory for counting, sorting, and identification. Infauna will be sorted by the Aquatic Bioassay 
team and separated into five groups: echinoderms, mollusks, polychaetes, crustaceans, and 
miscellaneous. Infauna identifications will be conducted by taxonomists who are active participants in 
the Southern California Association of Marine Invertebrate Taxonomists (SCAMIT). For each station, 
organisms will be counted in accordance with Techniques for Sampling and Analyzing the Marine 
Macrobenthos EPA 600/3-78-300 (USEPA, 1978a); Quality Assurance and Quality Control (QA/QC) 
for 301(h) Monitoring Programs: Guidance on Field and Laboratory Methods (Tetra Tech 1986); and 
The Southern California Bight 2013 Regional Marine Monitoring Survey Field Operations Manual 
(SCCWRP, 2013).  
 
Outfall Inspection  
 
Aquatic Bioassay will conduct an outfall pipe dive surveys for the District’s outfall pipe in order to 
inspect the physical integrity of the outfall pipe and note any leaks along its entire length to shore or 
impediments to flow from the diffuser ports. A DVD record of the dive is included with a detailed 
written report.  
 
Divers using high resolution video cameras and attached underwater lights will conduct the survey. 
Once the outfall terminus has been located by global positioning (GPS) and bottom finder, a buoy, 
attached to a line and a weight, will be deployed over the side. Divers will descend down the buoy 
line, swim to the diffuser terminus, and begin videotaping. At the end of each dive, a lift float will be 
deployed as a marker for the subsequent dive. Between dives, divers will download and inspect the 
footage, replace the batteries and reassembled the housing. Any serious anomalies along the length 
of the pipe (obvious leaks or pipe displacements) will be reported immediately by phone to the 
SSLOCSD project manager.  
 
Back in the laboratory the video will be downloaded to computer files, and edited using Adobe 
Premiere software, then transferred to DVDs. The DVDs will be reviewed by the survey team to make 
final assessment of the outfall pipes condition. The video is arranged from the deepest part of the 
dives (outfall terminus) to the shallowest part of the survey (outfall beginning). The written outcome of 
the dive survey will be included in the final report.  
 
Reporting  
 
The data generated from each phase of the monitoring program described above will be checked for 
quality, loaded into our database system and assessed for spatial and temporal trends using both 
univariate and multivariate statistical techniques as specified in the District’s National Pollutant 
Discharge Elimination System permit. The receiving water regulatory report will be of sufficient quality 
to be successfully submitted to the Central Coast Water Quality Control Board. Consultant will assist 
the District to answer questions or to provide additional information as requested by the Board. 
 

105



EXHIBIT “B” 
 

 Consultant will provide the services in accordance with this Agreement for a not-to-exceed fee 
of up to $40,325. 
 
 
The contract price is broken down as follows:   
 

• Benthic Sediment Sampling @ 5 locations (1 rep each) at assigned receiving water locations: 
$ 7,660 

 
• Benthic Biota Sampling (5 stations x 5 replicates = 25 samples):  (price included above) 

 
  

• Outfall Line Inspection: $ 7,450 
 

• Reporting (sediment chemistry, water quality, biology and outfall inspection): $ 5,200 
 

• Laboratory Analyses: $ 20,015 
 
The contract price includes services of a senior biologist, biologist, and field technician; lease of boat 
and captain, supplies and equipment, mileage, per diem, divers; video, editing and review; and 
complete laboratory analysis, taxonomy, shipping and handling. 
 
Consultant will invoice District for services on a monthly basis.   

106



 
EXHIBIT “C” 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 

Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contact insurance against 
claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in 
connection with the performance of the work hereunder by the Consultant, his/her agents, 
representatives, or employees.   

 
  A. Minimum Scope of Insurance 
 
   Coverage shall be at least as broad as: 
  
   1. Insurance Services Office Commercial General Liability 

coverage (occurrence form CG 0001). 
 
   2. Insurance Services Office Business Auto Coverage Form 

Number CA 0001, Code 1 (any auto). 
 
   3. Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the State of 

California and Employer's Liability Insurance.   
 
   4. Errors and Omissions liability insurance appropriate to the 

Consultant's profession.  Architects' and engineers' coverage is to be endorsed to 
include contractual liability.   

 
  B. Minimum Limits of Insurance 
 
   Consultant shall maintain limits no less than: 
 
   1. General Liability - $1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury, 

personal injury and property damage.  If Commercial General Liability Insurance or 
other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the general aggregate limit 
shall apply separately to this project/location or the general aggregate limit shall be 
twice the required occurrence limit.   

 
   2. Automobile Liability - $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury 

and property damage.   
 
   3. Employee's Liability - $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury 

or disease.   
 
   4. Errors and Omissions Liability - $1,000,000 per occurrence.   
 
  C. Deductibles and Self-insured Retentions 
 
   Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and 

approved by the District.  At the option of the District, either: the insurer shall 
reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions as respects the 

107



District, its trustees, officers, employees and volunteers; or the Consultant shall 
provide a financial guarantee satisfactory to the District guaranteeing payment of 
losses and related investigations, claim administration and defense expenses.   

 
  D. Other Insurance Provisions 
 
   The commercial general liability and automobile liability policies are 

to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 
 
   1. The District, its trustees, officers, employees and volunteers 

are to be covered as insureds as respects: liability arising out of work or operations 
performed by or on behalf of the Consultant; or automobiles owned, leased, hired 
or borrowed by the Consultant.   

 
   2. For any claims related to this project, the Consultant's 

insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the District, its trustees, 
officers, employees and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by 
the District, its trustees, officers, employees or volunteers shall be excess of the 
Consultant's insurance and shall not contribute with it.   

 
   3. Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be 

endorsed to state that coverage shall not be canceled by either party, except after 
thirty (30) days' prior written notice stating the title of this contract has been given 
to the District.  All notices provided pursuant to this Agreement shall be given 
to the District representative  listed for notice in this agreement and shall 
specify the title of this Agreement.  Notice may be given by overnight mail, 
facsimile with confirmation of receipt, or certified mail with return-receipt requested.  
In the case of a reduction in coverage, the Consultant shall provide thirty (30) days’ 
prior written notice as provided in this subparagraph. 

 
  E. Acceptability of Insurers 
 
   Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best's 

rating of no less than A:VII, unless otherwise acceptable to the District.   
 
  F. Verification of Coverage 
 
   Consultant shall furnish the District with original certificates and 

amendatory endorsements effecting coverage required by this clause.  The 
endorsements should be on forms provided by the District or on other than the 
District's forms provided those endorsements conform to District requirements.  All 
certificates and endorsements are to be received and approved by the District 
before work commences.  The District reserves the right to require complete, 
certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements effecting 
the coverage required by these specifications at any time.   

 

108



  

South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District 
Proposal for Professional Services 

April 2016 

  

29 N. Olive St. 
Ventura, CA 93001 

Phone: 805 643 5621 ext 11 
Fax: 805 643 2930 
scott@aquabio.org 

  

Attachment B

109



Aquatic Bioassay & Consulting Laboratories Statement of Qualifications 

 

          

1

Table of Contents 
 
 
TABLE OF CONTENTS ........................................................................................................... 1 

INTRODUCTION ................................................................................................................. 2 

WORKPLAN ...................................................................................................................... 3 

Benthic Sediment Monitoring ......................................................................................... 3 

Chemistry Sampling .................................................................................................... 3 

Chemical Analyses....................................................................................................... 3 

Benthic Biota Monitoring ................................................................................................ 4 

Biota Sampling ............................................................................................................ 4 

Biota Analysis .............................................................................................................. 4 

Outfall Inspection ............................................................................................................ 5 

Reporting ........................................................................................................................ 5 

REPRESENTIVE PROJECT WORK ............................................................................................. 6 

Coastal Marine Monitoring ............................................................................................. 6 

PERSONNEL ...................................................................................................................... 9 

 

Attachment B

110



Aquatic Bioassay & Consulting Laboratories Statement of Qualifications 

 

          

2

Introduction 
The Aquatic Bioassay & Consulting Laboratories, Inc. (Aquatic Bioassay) team of 
scientists have been successfully performing coastal marine monitoring surveys for 
many southern and central California industries and municipalities from San Luis 
Obispo to San Diego since 1988. We have been active participants in each of the 
Southern California Bight Regional Monitoring programs since 1994 and are 
responsible for two of the largest ongoing NPDES municipal monitoring programs in 
southern California. Our field and laboratory capabilities include sampling and 
analysis for sediment chemistry, benthic infauna, tissue bioaccumulation, trawled 
organisms, current meter studies, ichthyoplankton, water quality profiling using 
electronic sensor packages, particle size and bacteria. In addition, our team routinely 
conducts video dive surveys of effluent discharge pipes. Each of our marine 
monitoring capabilities are in compliance with the field and laboratory protocols 
developed by the United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA), the State 
of California’s Surface Water Ambient Monitoring Program (SWAMP) and the 
Southern California Bight Regional Monitoring Program (SCBRMP).  

We will provide all of the services necessary to successfully complete the South San 
Luis Obispo County Sanitation District’s (SSLOCSD) receiving water monitoring 
survey including: program management, sample collection, laboratory analysis, data 
management, statistical analysis, and reports that are ready for submittal to local, 
state and federal agencies. In short, we will provide monitoring services that are cost 
effective, meet or surpass all quality control guidelines, and provide a level of 
responsiveness that is totally unique to our industry. 

Attachment B

111



Aquatic Bioassay & Consulting Laboratories Statement of Qualifications 

 

          

3

Workplan 
Benthic Sediment Monitoring 

Chemistry Sampling 

Sampling procedures for the SSLOCSD will be 
conducted in strict adherence to Techniques for 
Sampling and Analyzing the Marine Macrobenthos 
(USEPA, 1978a); Quality Assurance and Quality Control 
(QA/QC) for 301 (h) Monitoring Programs: Guidance on 
Field and Laboratory Methods (Tetra Tech, 1986); and 
The Southern California 2013 Regional Marine 
Monitoring Survey Field Operations Manual (SCCWRP, 
2013a). Single sediment samples will be collected at 5 
stations (RSW-001, RSW-002S, RSW-002N, RSW-003 
and RSW-004) using a 0.1 m2 Van Veen grab. The top 
2 cm of sediment will be collected from each grab and 
placed into a pre-cleaned glass container, labeled and 
stored on wet ice for transport to the chemistry laboratory. Sediments for particle 
size analysis will be placed in a whirl pak and placed on wet ice.  

Chemical Analyses 

Chemical analyses will be conducted by PHYSIS Environmental Laboratories located 
in Anaheim, CA. Aquatic Bioassay has worked with the owners and senior staff at  
PHYSIS for over twenty years making the reduction, interpretation and sharing of 
data between our companies seamless. PHYSIS is fully accrediated by the State of 
Calfornia (ELAP certification No. 2769) and will provide data of the highest quality, 
coupled with the lowest method detection limits of any laboratory on the west coast. 
All chemistry data will be reported in raw form on a dry weight basis. The table 
below lists the constituents to be measured by PHYSIS for the SSLOCSD monitoring 
effort, method SOPs, along with the method detection and reporting limits for each.  
 
Samples for sediment particle size distribution will be analyzed by laser diffraction 
using a Horiba particle size analyzer and in accordance with Standard Methods 2560 
D (APHA, 2005). The analyzer is capable of measuring particle sizes ranging from 
clay (<2μm) up to course sand (2000μm).  

Attachment B

112



Aquatic Bioassay & Consulting Laboratories Statement of Qualifications 

 

          

4

Constituent Method MDL RL Units

Particle Size SM 2560 D <2 to 2000 µm

Sediment Sulfides at pH 7

Total Sulfides Plumb, 1981/TERL 0.2 0.4 mg/kg

Dissolved Sulfides Plumb, 1981/TERL 0.2 0.4 mg/kg

BOD SM 5210 B (M) mg/kg

Metals

Arsenic (As) EPA 6020 0.025 0.05 µg/g

Cadmium (Cd) EPA 6020 0.025 0.05 µg/g

Chromium (Cr) EPA 6020 0.025 0.05 µg/g

Copper (Cu) EPA 6020 0.025 0.05 µg/g

Lead (Pb) EPA 6020 0.025 0.05 µg/g

Nickel (Ni) EPA 6020 0.025 0.05 µg/g

Silver (Ag) EPA 6020 0.025 0.05 µg/g

Zinc (Zn) EPA 6020 0.025 0.05 µg/g

Chromium +6 SM 3500-Cr D 0.05 0.1 mg/kg

Mercury EPA 245.7 0.00001 0.00002 µg/g

Total Kjeldahl Nitrogen EPA 351.2 5 mg/kg

Ammonia SM 4500-NH3 D 0.03 0.03 mg/kg

Nitrate SM 4500-NO3 E 0.01 0.05 mg/kg

Total Organic Carbon SM 5310 B 0.01 0.02 % Dry Weight

Percent Solids EPA 160.3 0.1 0.05 %  
 
 

Benthic Biota Monitoring 

Biota Sampling 

Sampling for biota will be conducted using the same 
approach and at the same five monitoring sites 
described above under the chemistry sampling 
section. Five replicate grab samples will be collected 
and handled separately for a total of 25 infauna 
samples. Sediments to be analyzed for infauna will be 
sieved through a 1.0 millimeter screen. The retained 
organisms and larger sediment fragments will be 
washed into half gallon plastic bottles, relaxed with a 
magnesium sulfate solution for one half hour, then 
preserved with 10% buffered formalin.  

Biota Analysis 

Screened and preserved sediments collected in the field will be delivered to the 
Aquatic Bioassay laboratory for counting, sorting, and identification. Infauna will be 
sorted by the Aquatic Bioassay team and separated into five groups: echinoderms, 
mollusks, polychaetes, crustaceans, and miscellaneous. Infauna identifications will be 

Attachment B

113



Aquatic Bioassay & Consulting Laboratories Statement of Qualifications 

 

          

5

conducted by taxonomists who are active participants in the Southern California 
Association of Marine Invertebrate Taxonomists (SCAMIT). For each station, 
organisms will be counted in accordance with Techniques for Sampling and Analyzing 
the Marine Macrobenthos EPA 600/3-78-300 (USEPA, 1978a); Quality Assurance and 
Quality Control (QA/QC) for 301(h) Monitoring Programs: Guidance on Field and 
Laboratory Methods (Tetra Tech 1986); and The Southern California Bight 2013 
Regional Marine Monitoring Survey Field Operations Manual (SCCWRP, 2013).  

Outfall Inspection 

Aquatic Bioassay conducts outfall pipe dive surveys 
for POTW dischargers from Oxnard to San Luis 
Obispo. The purpose of these surveys are to inspect 
the physical integrity of the outfall pipe and note any 
leaks along its entire length to shore or impediments 
to flow from the diffuser ports. A DVD record of the 
dive is included with a detailed written report.  
 
Divers using high resolution video cameras and attached underwater lights will 
conduct the survey. Once the outfall terminus has been located by global positioning 
(GPS) and bottom finder, a buoy, attached to a line and a weight, will be deployed 
over the side. Divers will descend down the buoy line, swim to the diffuser terminus, 
and begin videotaping.  At the end of each dive, a lift float will be deployed as a 
marker for the subsequent dive. Between dives, divers will download and inspect the 
footage, replace the batteries and reassembled the housing. Any serious anomolies 
along the length of the pipe (obvious leaks or pipe displacements) will be reported 
immediately by phone to the SSLOCSD project manager.  

Back in the laboratory the video will be downloaded to computer files, and edited 
using Adobe Premiere software, then transferred to DVDs. The DVDs will be reviewed 
by the survey team to make final assessment of the outfall pipes condition. The 
video is arranged from the deepest part of the dives (outfall terminus) to the 
shallowest part of the survey (outfall beginning). The written outcome of the dive 
survey will be included in the final report.  

Reporting 

The data generated from each phase of the monitoring program described above will 
be checked for quality, loaded into our database system and assessed for spatial and 
temporal trends using both univaritate and multivariate statistcal techniques as 
specified in the SSLOCSD NPDES permit. Our receiving water regulatory reports have 
been successfully submitted by our clients to the Central Coast Water Quality Control 
Board for over two decades. We strive to generate reports that are consise, while 
still providing detailed information that allow our clients and their regulators to 
assess spatial and temporal trends in their receiving waters. We stand behind our 
assessments and will assist the SSLOCSD to answer questions or to provide 
additional information as requested by the Board.  

Attachment B

114



Aquatic Bioassay & Consulting Laboratories Statement of Qualifications 

 

          

6

Representive Project Work 

Coastal Marine Monitoring 

Below are listed several of the marine monitoring programs that Aquatic Bioassay 
has been involved with over the past 27 years: 

City of Oxnard.  Mr. Jeremy Grant, 805 271 2220. The Aquatic Bioassay Team has 
been conducting one of the largest ongoing NPDES municipal receiving monitoring 
programs in southern California for the City of Oxnard since 1979. This monitoring 
program requires the following: 

 Annual sediment contaminant and benthic infauna surveys are conducted at 
seven sites near to and far from the outfall terminus to assess both the spatial 
and temporal impact of the effluent discharge. Chemistry samples are analyzed 
for general constituents, total metals and organics. Infauna are analyzed by 
SCAMIT certified taxonomists. Data are reported both in tables and graphs and 
assessed using both univariate and multivariate statistical techniques. 

 Quarterly water quality surveys using a SeaBird 25 CTD water column profiling 
package for depth, temperature, conductivity, salinity, dissolved oxygen, pH, and 
fluorescence (chla and CDOM). These surveys are part of a regional survey that 
is conducted in coordination with the Central Coast Water Quality Consortium 
(Orange County Sanitation Districts, the Sanitation Districts of Los Angeles 
County, and the City of Los Angeles). 

 Trawled fish and macroinvertebrate communities are sampled annually at three 
replicate stations to assess the impact of the effluent on these communities. In 
addition, tissue bioaccumulation samples are dissected from fish and 
invertebrates and then analyzed for priority pollutants and compared with other 
locations in California to provide perspective and to OEHHA human health 
consumption thresholds.  

 Annual outfall pipe inspections are conducted by divers using video to record the 
condition of the pipe.   

 All data collected from the above surveys are condensed into quarterly water 
quality reports and an annual receiving water report that is ready for submission 
to the Regional Water Quality Control Board.  

 Aquatic Bioassay scientists represent the City of Oxnard during all Southern 
California Bight Regional Montoring Program activities and are active members on 
the Steering, Coastal Ecology, Water Quality, Benthic Ecology, Trawling, and 
Toxicity Committees. These surveys have been conducted every five years since 
1994 throughout the southern California bight and include extensive design, 
sampling, analysis and reporting services. 

 
South San Luis Obispo Sanitation District. Aquatic Bioassay has conducted the 
sampling, analysis and reporting for the South San Luis Obispo Sanitation District tri-
annual ocean monitoring program since 2001. These surveys include sediment 
sampling for chemistry and infauna, trawling, fish tissue bioaccumulation and diver 
video inspection of the outfall pipe. All of the NPDES permit mandated data collected 

Attachment B

115



Aquatic Bioassay & Consulting Laboratories Statement of Qualifications 

 

          

7

for these surveys were synthesized into consice reports ready for submission to the 
Central Coast Regional Water Quality Control Board.   
 
Goleta Sanitation District.  Ms. Lena Cox, 805-967-4519.  Since 1998 the Aquatic 
Bioassay team has been conducting both quarterly and annual compliance 
monitoring surveys for the District.  These surveys include: 

 Quarterly water quality surveys using a SeaBird 25 CTD water column profiling 
package for depth, temperature, conductivity, salinity, dissolved oxygen and pH. 

 Annual sediment contaminant and benthic infauna surveys are conducted at six 
sites near to and far from the outfall terminus to assess both the spatial and 
temporal impact of the effluent discharge. Chemistry samples are analyzed for 
general constituents, total metals and organics. Infauna are analyzed by SCAMIT 
certified taxonomists. Data are reported both in tables and graphs and assessed 
using both univariate and multivariate statistical techniques. 

 Trawled fish and macroinvertebrate communities are sampled annually at three 
replicate stations to assess the impact of the effluent on these communities. In 
addition, tissue bioaccumulation samples are dissected from fish and mussels and 
then analyzed for priority pollutants and compared to OEHHA consumption 
thresholds.  

 Annual outfall pipe inspections are conducted by divers using video to record the 
condition of the pipe.   

 All data collected from the above surveys are condensed into an annual receiving 
water report that is ready for submission to the Central Coast Regional Water 
Quality Control Board.  

 
City of Santa Barbara.  Ms. Rebecca Bjork, 805-897-1914.  In 2002 and again in 
2007, the Aquatic Bioassay team was awarded the contract to conduct the triennial 
compliance monitoring survey for the El Estero Wastewater Treatment Plant. These 
surveys included fish trawls, sediment chemistry, benthic infauna, fish and 
invertebrate tissue bioaccumulation studies. All of the NPDES permit mandated data 
collected for these surveys were synthesized into consice reports ready for 
submission to the Central Coast Water Quality Control Board.   
 
Montecito Sanitary District. Since 2004 the Aquatic Bioassay team was awarded 
the contract to conduct the triennial compliance monitoring survey for the Montecito 
Sanitary District Treatment Plant. These surveys included sediment chemistry, 
benthic infauna, fish and invertebrate tissue bioaccumulation studies and outfall dive 
surveys. All of the NPDES permit mandated data collected for these surveys were 
synthesized into consice reports ready for submission to the Central Coast Water 
Quality Control Board.   
 
Carpinteria Sanitary District. Mr. Frank Gonzales, 805-684-7214.  Since 1993, 
the Aquatic Bioassay team has conducted the five year compliance monitoring 
survey for the Carpinteria Sanitary District. These surveys included sediment 
chemistry, benthic infauna and outfall dive surveys. All of the NPDES permit 
mandated data collected for these surveys were synthesized into consice reports 
ready for submission to the Central Coast Water Quality Control Board.   
 

Attachment B

116



Aquatic Bioassay & Consulting Laboratories Statement of Qualifications 

 

          

8

Southern California Bight Regional Monitoring Program. Southern California 
Coastal Water Research Project (SCCWRP), Mr. Ken Schiff, 714-755-3202. The 
Aquatic Bioassay Team has been participating in this region-wide marine monitoring 
study since the fall of 1998. This project is coordinated by SCCWRP and is the largest 
ocean monitoring study in the nation. Other participants include the U.S. Navy, 
National Parks Service, UCLA, USC, UCSB, Channel Islands National Marine 
Sanctuary, all of southern California’s coastal POTW’s and watershed protection 
agencies. Aquatic Bioassay’s participation includes water column sampling, shoreline 
bacterial sampling, bottom sediment sampling for chemical analysis and infauna, 
trawl sampling with fish and invertebrate identification, infaunal taxonomy, sediment 
toxicity bioassays, data analysis and reporting.  In addition, Aquatic Bioassay staff 
are members on the following committees; Steering, Toxicology, Microbiology, Field 
Methods, Fish Taxonomy, Benthic Taxonomy, Water Quality, and Data Management. 
Aquatic Bioassay has served as a contract benthic infauna taxonomy laboratory for 
SCCWRP for the past ten years. 
 
City of Avalon.  Since 1990 the Aquatic Bioassay team has been conducting the 
annual surveys that include diver collection of sediment samples using hand-held 
corers at depths of 41 meters (135 feet) near the City of Avalon’s ocean outfall. 
Samples are analyzed for benthic biota and chemical contaminants and an 
underwater survey of the outfall using photographs and video are conducted. 
 
City of Los Angeles, Environmental Monitoring Division. Mr. Curtis Cash, 310-
648-5269. We have provided benthic sediment infauna sorting for samples collected 
from Santa Monica Bay and the Los Angeles Harbor since 2005. Our sorting lab 
follows the Bight Regional Monitoring Program standard operations procedures and 
has a reputation for meeting project deadlines while surpassing all data quality 
standards for the City’s projects.  
 
 

Attachment B

117



Aquatic Bioassay & Consulting Laboratories Statement of Qualifications 

 

          

9

Personnel 
The Aquatic Bioassay Team has been working together virtually unchanged for over 
ten years. Taken together, the Team has over a century of combined experience in 
coastal marine survey work. The following are the key team members: 
 
Mr. Scott Johnson is the Laboratory Director for Aquatic Bioassay and Consulting 
Laboratories in Ventura, CA. Mr. Johnson joined Aquatic Bioassay in 2002 and 
currently manages the freshwater bioassessment and marine monitoring programs 
for several of the largest municipal, state and private agencies in the State of 
California. His career has focused on the effects of anthropogenic contaminants and 
habitat conditions on the composition and integrity of biological communities; the 
development and implementation of both distributed and centralized environmental 
database systems; and laboratory management. Mr. Johnson began his career with 
the City of Los Angeles, where he managed the biology laboratories and was 
responsible for the regulatory permits pertaining to the Los Angeles River, Santa 
Monica Bay and Los Angeles Harbor. He joined EcoAnalysis, Inc., an environmental 
analysis and database company in 1994, advancing to President in 1998. Mr. 
Johnson is currently on the Board for the Southern California Chapter of the Society 
of Environmental Toxicologists and Chemists (SETAC), was a Board member of the 
Southwestern Association of Freshwater Invertebrate Taxonomists (SAFIT, 2007 to 
2011) and serves on the Technical Advisory Committee for the Southern California 
Stormwater Monitoring Coalition (SMC). He has numerous scientific papers and 
presentations to his credit. Mr. Johnson holds both Masters (1988) and Bachelors 
degrees (1981) in Biology (minor in Chemistry) from California State University, 
Long Beach and studied Limnology at the University of Uppsala, Sweden from 1978 
to 1979. 
 
Ms. Karin Wisenbaker is our supervising biologist who is responsible for the day to 
day operations of the taxonomy lab and sampling crews. Ms. Wisenbaker has been 
with Aquatic Bioassay since 2001 and participates in all field sampling, data 
management, sample tracking, report writing and supervision of our taxonomy 
laboratory. Before coming to Aquatic Bioassay, Ms. Wisenbaker worked as the 
Environmental Projects Coordinator for the Southern California Marine Institute 
(SCMI) for seven years. She has a hands on, in-depth understanding of local, state 
and federal ocean monitoring and freshwater bioassessment protocols. Ms. 
Wisenbaker holds a Bachelors degree (2000) in Environmental Biology from 
California State University, Northridge. 
 
Ms. Wendy Willis is a field biologist and taxonomist who is responsible for the 
identification of organisms from sites throughout southern Calfornia. Ms. Willis is an 
active member in SAFIT and works closely with the California Department of Fish and 
Game Lab in Rancho Cordova regarding QC issues. Besides taxonomy, she 
participates in all aspects of this program including field sampling, data management 
and data analysis. Ms. Willis received her B.S. degree (2009) in Biology, emphasis in  
Ecology from California State University Long Beach (CSULB).  
 
Mr. James Mann is our senior biologist responsible for all field activities pertaining 
to dive surveys, water quality monitoring and analysis, equipment inventory and 
maintenance and the hazardous waste bioassay laboratory. Mr. Mann has been with 

Attachment B

118



Aquatic Bioassay & Consulting Laboratories Statement of Qualifications 

 

          

10

Aquatic Bioassay for 15 years and conducts all underwater biological surveys for 
plants, fish and invertebrates; and, field water quality surveys using remote sensing 
equipment. Mr. Mann has been certified by the California Department of Fish and 
Game to conduct underwater surveys for Caulerpa taxifolia (expiration December 1st, 
2013) and is proficient in the use of underwater photography equipment including 
video. Mr. Mann attended Antelope Valley College (1982 to 1984) and California 
State University, Northridge (1984 to 1989).  
 
Mr. Rich Gossett is the Owner and Senior Chemist with PHYSIS Environmental 
Laboratories, Inc. For over 33 years, Mr. Gossett has provided research and 
regulatory management communities and their environmental science and 
engineering consultants with integrative chemistry support including robust decision-
making data for projects as far away as Antarctica, Lake Baikal, South Africa, Israel, 
American Samoa, Hawaii and Alaska as well as the contiguous United States in his 
field-wide renowned role in the development of and advances in environmental 
analytical chemistry. Mr. Gossett is currently Physis Environmental Laboratories Co-
Owner, Technical Director, Trace Organics Laboratory Director and Senior Project 
Manager.  Under his industry and peer-leading stewardship, Physis features the 
advantages and benefits of a performance-based specialized analytical chemistry 
practice in commercial production with heavily-weighted Senior Staff comprising over 
100 years of combined analytical experience in coastal and marine chemistry 
working collaboratively, collegially and responsively on the most rigorous regulatory 
and important research issues of our time.   
 
Benthic Infauna Taxonomy Team. Aquatic Bioassay brings several of the leading 
marine taxonomists in southern California to the SSLOCSD project. This team has 
identified infauna organisms from the Mexican Boarder to the north coast of 
California, in coastal waters, bays, harbors and estuaries. The team includes Tony 
Phillips (polychaetes), Dean Pasko (crustaceans & other phyla), Kelvin Barwick 
(mollusks) and Megan Lilly (echinoderms). They are all active SCAMIT members 
and have been identifying coastal benthic infauna species in their respective areas of 
expertise for over ten years each.  

 

 

 

Attachment B

119



South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District’s
Ocean Monitoring Summary Price Quote 2016

Phase Phase Total

A Benthic Sediment Sampling @ 5 locations ( 1 rep each) at assigned receiving water locations 7,660$           

C Benthic Biota Sampling  (5 stations x 5 replicates = 25 samples) Included in Phase A above -$              

D Outfall Line Inspection 7,450$           

E Reporting (sediment chemistry, water quality, biology and outfall inspection 5,200$           

F Laboratory Analyses 20,015$         

Project Total 40,325$         

Task

Aquatic Bioassay and Consulting Laboratories 4/6/2016

Attachment B

120



South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District’s
Ocean Monitoring Detailed Price Quote 2016

Phase Task Straight 
Time Hrs OT Hrs Regular Time 

Rate OT Rate Sub-Total Task Total Estimated 
Days Phase Total

A Benthic Sediment Sampling @ 5 locations ( 1 rep each) at assigned receiving water locations
Senior Biologist 8 2 110$               165$           1,210$              
Biologist 8 2 100$               150$           1,100$              
Field Technician 8 2 70$                 105$           770$                 
Boat Lease 3,500$              
Supplies and Equipment 500$                 
Mileage (230 mi x 55 ¢) 130$                 
Per diem @ 1 night, 3 people x 150 ea 450$                 7,660$          1 7,660$            

C Benthic Biota Sampling  (5 stations x 5 replicates = 25 samples)
Senior Biologist Included in A above
Biologist Included in A above
Field Technician Included in A above
Boat Lease Included in A above
Equipment Included in A above
Mileage (230 mi x 55 ¢) Included in A above
Per diem Included in A abov -$             1 -$                

D Outfall Line Inspection
Boat Lease + Captain 3,500$              
Supplies and Equipment 500$                 
Divers 2,500$              
Video: editing and review 500$                 
Per diem 450$                 7,450$          1 7,450$            

E Reporting (sediment chemistry, water quality, biology and outfall inspection)
Senior Scientist 20 150$               3,000$              
Senior Biologist 20 110$               2,200$              5,200$          - 5,200$            

Phase Task Qty Avg Price/ 
Sample Sub-Total  Task Total  Phase Total 

F Laboratory Analyses
Sediment Chemisty (see attached detail) 5 973$               4,865$              
Benthic Infuana Sorting and Taxonomy

Sample Sorting 25 190$               4,750$              
Taxonomy 25 400$               10,000$            
Shipping and handling 400$                 20,015$        20,015$          

Project Total 40,325$          

Aquatic Bioassay and Consulting Laboratories 4/6/2016

Attachment B

121





 
SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY 

SANITATION DISTRICT 
Post Office Box 339 Oceano, California  93475-0339 

1600 Aloha Oceano, California 93445-9735 
Telephone (805) 489-6666 FAX (805) 489-2765 

www.sslocsd.org 
 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

To:  Board of Directors 
From:  John Clemons, Interim District Administrator 
Date:  April 20, 2016  
 
Subject: STATE REVOLVING FUND FINANCIAL PACKAGE 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors authorize the District Administrator to execute the 
attached contract with Bartle, Wells, and Associates for completion of the State Revolving 
Funding financing application package. 

BACKGROUND 

The District completed the Wastewater Financial Plan and Rate Study in 2016 and passed a rate 
increase that included debt service on a State Revolving Fund (SRF) loan for the Wastewater 
Treatment Plant (WWTP) Redundancy Project.  SRF loans are a low cost approach for public 
agencies to fund major water and wastewater projects.  The interest rates fluctuate based on 
roughly half of the most recent State of California’s General Obligation Bond Rate.  Currently, 
20- to 30-year financing is offered for interest rates below 2%.  The Rate Study included the 
assumption of a 30-year loan with 3% annual interest rate. 

SRF offers both a planning/design loan and a construction loan.  Repayment does not begin until 
one year after project completion. 

DISCUSSION 

The SRF construction loan application consists of four packages:  financial, environmental, 
technical, and general information.  The District submitted the general information package on 
April 12, 2016.  District and consultant staff will complete the environmental and technical 
packages using information from previous studies and work efforts.   

The attached proposal from BWA includes preparation of the financial package, including cash 
flow projections and other items that may be requested by State Water Resources Control Board 
after they review the initial submittal. 

The District requested a proposal from BWA since they recently completed the Rate Study and 
are well-qualified in municipal financing including preparation of SRF applications.  The 

122



proposal is cost-effective because BWA completed the District’s Rate Study and has an in-depth 
understanding of the District’s finances.   

Their proposal includes preparation of the financial package and supporting documents, as well 
as technical support on an as-needed basis during the SRWCB review process.  The total contract 
amount is $12,500 on a time and materials basis (including $12,000 fee plus direct expenses, not 
to exceed $500).  The budget cannot be exceeded without requesting additional authorization in 
writing. 

OPTIONS 

1. Approve Staff’s recommendation to execute the District’s professional services 
agreement with Bartle, Wells, and Associate and adopt the attached resolution. 
 

2. Do not Approve Staff’s recommendation and direct staff as to how to proceed 
 
Best Regards, 
 
 
 
John Clemons III 
Superintendent/Interim District Administrator 
 
Attachments: 

 
  
 

 Resolution 2016-347 
 
Attachment A:  Agreement for Professional Services – Coordination of a Financial Assistance 
Application for a Stat Revolving Fund Loan 

 
 
 
 
 
 

123



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-347 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SOUTH SAN LUIS 
OBISPO COUNTY SANITATION DISTRICT AUTHORIZING AND 

DIRECTING THE INTERIM DISTRICT ADMINISTRATOR OR 
DESIGNEE TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH BARTLE 

WELLS ASSOCIATES FOR COORDINATION OF A STATE 
REVOLVING FUND FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE APPLICATION 

 
 WHEREAS, the District needs to complete an application for low-rate 
financing from the Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loan Financing Program; 
and   
 

WHEREAS, the District currently does not have staff available to complete 
this task; and 
 

WHEREAS, the District has obtained a proposal for professional services 
dated March 28, 2016 from Bartle Wells Associates (“Consultant”), offering to 
assist the District with completion of the Financial Assistance Application for 
State Revolving Fund financing and associated require documentation; and 
 

WHEREAS, based on Consultant’s qualifications and experience as a firm 
specializing in providing financial advisory services to public entities, together 
with Consultant’s specific knowledge of the District through recent work preparing 
a wastewater rate study for the District, it appears that Consultant’s proposal best 
meets District’s needs for the project; and 
 

WHEREAS, hiring Consultant to provide receiving water monitoring 
survey services for District is consistent with District’s Purchasing Guidelines, as 
adopted by Resolution 2014-314, which provide that the District Manager is the 
District’s agent for purchasing services more than $7,500 but less than $45,000 
and establish objectives including that District services procurement be efficient, 
at lowest possible cost, of a quality to assure efficient running of the wastewater 
plant, and give a local preference in contracts with a bid price less than $45,000. 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of South 
San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District as follows: 
 

1. An AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES – 
COORDINATION OF A STATE REVOLVING FUND FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 
APPLICATION with Bartle Wells Associates is hereby approved in substantially 
the form attached hereto as Exhibit “1;” and 

2. The Interim District Administrator, or his/her designee, is hereby 
authorized and directed to execute the Agreement on behalf of the District, to 
take all steps necessary to implement the project, and, if appropriate, to enter 
into amendments to the Agreement necessary to implement the project. 

Atty rev. 2015 
 
 

124



2 
 

 
  PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the South San 
Luis Obispo County Sanitation District held April 20, 2016. 
 
 
 
              
                                                                               Board Chair 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
        APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
DISTRICT SECRETARY 

       BY:    
                DISTRICT COUNSEL 
 
 
        CONTENTS: 
 
        BY:     
                 DISTRICT ADMINISTRATOR 
 
         

Atty rev. 2015 
 
 

125



Attachment A 
For Resolution 2016-347 
 

AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES – COORDINATION OF A FINANCIAL 
ASSISTANCE APPLICATION FOR A STATE REVOLVING FUND LOAN 

 
This Agreement is made on                   , 2016, by and between Bartle Wells Associates, a California 
___________ (“Consultant”), and the South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District (“District”), in 
Oceano, California, based on the following recitals: 
 

1.  The District needs to complete an application for low-rate financing from the Clean Water 
State Revolving Fund Loan Financing Program; and   

2. The District currently does not have staff available to complete this task; and 
3. The District has obtained a proposal for professional services dated March 28, 2016 

from Bartle Wells Associates (“Consultant”), offering to assist the District with completion of the 
Financial Assistance Application for State Revolving Fund financing and associated require 
documentation; and 

4. Based on Consultant’s qualifications and experience as a firm specializing in providing 
financial advisory services to public entities, together with Consultant’s specific knowledge of the 
District through recent work preparing a wastewater rate study for the District, it appears that 
Consultant’s proposal best meets District’s needs for the project; and 
 5.        Hiring Consultant to provide coordination of a State Revolving Fund financial assistance 
application for District is consistent with District’s Purchasing Guidelines, as adopted by Resolution 
2014-314, which provide that the District Manager is the District’s agent for purchasing services more 
than $7,500 but less than $45,000 and establish objectives including that District services 
procurement be efficient, at lowest possible cost, of a quality to assure efficient running of the 
wastewater plant, and give a local preference in contracts with a bid price less than $45,000. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED: 

1. Recitals true.  The above recitals are true. 
2. General. 
 2.01.  Term and Termination.    The term of this contract is 6 months, beginning on the 

date first written above.  This contract may be extended by consent of the parties.  This contract may 
be terminated for breach of its terms or conditions, or because of discovery of any act which violates 
local, state or federal law.  Termination is effective 14 days after mutual deposit of notice as specified 
in this Agreement. 

2.02.  Services to be Performed.  Consultant shall determine the method, details and 
means of providing coordination of a State Revolving Fund financial assistance application for the 
District.  More specifically, Consultant agrees to perform the specific services listed in Exhibit “A.” 

 2.03  District’s Duties.  District’s duties under this Agreement are to cooperate with 
Consultant in the performance of the contract and timely pay invoices. 

2.04. Payment.  Payment terms under this Agreement are listed in Exhibit “B.”  
2.05. Insurance.  Consultant shall provide insurance as listed in Exhibit “C.”  
2.06. Exhibits.  Exhibits “A,” “B,” and “C” are attached and incorporated. 

 3. Consultant’s Obligations. 
  3.01.  Minimum Amount of Service.  Consultant shall devote sufficient time to perform 
services under this agreement efficiently and effectively. Consultant  may represent, perform services 
for and be employed by additional individuals or entities, in Consultant’s sole discretion, as long as the 

126



performance of these extra-contractual services does not interfere with or present a conflict with 
District's business. 
  3.02.  Tools and Equipment.  Except as otherwise stated in this Agreement, Consultant 
will supply all tools and equipment necessary to perform this Agreement. 
  3.03.  Status.  Consultant (including its employees) is an independent contractor.  No 
employer/employee relationship exists between Consultant and the District.  Consultant's assigned 
personnel shall not be entitled to any benefits payable to employees of the District.   The District is 
not required to make any deductions or withholdings from the compensation payable to Consultant 
under this agreement. 
  3.04.  Indemnification. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Consultant shall 
indemnify, defend (with independent counsel approved by the District) and hold harmless the District, 
and its directors, officers, and employees from and against all liabilities (including without limitation all 
claims, losses, damages, penalties, fines, and judgments, associated investigation and administrative 
expenses, and defense costs, including but not limited to reasonable attorneys’ fees, court costs and 
costs of alternative dispute resolution) regardless of nature or type that arise out of, pertain to, or 
relate to the negligence, reckless, or willful misconduct of the Consultant or the acts or omissions of 
an employee, agent or subcontractor of the Consultant.  The provisions of this paragraph survive 
completion of the services or the termination of this contract.  The provisions of this Section are not 
limited by the provisions of the Section relating to insurance. 
 
 4.  Miscellaneous 

4.01.  Notices.  All communication relating to the day-to-day activities of this Agreement 
shall be exchanged between a designated representative of the District and a representative of 
Consultant, listed below.  All notices shall be addressed as follows unless a written change is filed 
with the District: 
 
To District:      To Consultant: 
Attn. District Administrator    Bartle Wells Associates 
P.O. Box 339      1889 Alcatraz Avenue 
Oceano, CA  93475     Berkeley, CA  94703 
 
If the designated Representative or address of either party changes during the term of this 
agreement, a written notice shall be given to the other party prior to the effective date of change.  Any 
written notices required under this agreement shall be effective five (5) days after deposit into United 
States mail, postage prepaid, addressed to the designated Representative, or upon confirmation of 
receipt of delivery if another notification process is used. 
  4.02.  Compliance With Laws, etc.  Consultant shall comply with all laws, including but 
not limited to the rules and policies of the District, in performing this agreement. 
  4.03.  Integration.  This agreement constitutes the entire agreement of the parties with 
respect to the subject matter.  All modifications, amendments, or waivers of the terms of this 
agreement must be in writing and signed by the appropriate representatives of the parties.   

  4.04. Interpretation.  This agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of 
the State of California. 

4.05. Jurisdiction.  Jurisdiction and venue of all disputes over the terms of this 
agreement shall be in the County of San Luis Obispo, State of California. 

4.06.  Warranty of authority.  Each person signing this agreement on behalf of a party 
warrants that he or she has authority to do so. 

4.07.  No Waiver. Failure to enforce with respect to a default shall not be construed as 
a waiver. 

127



4.08.  Severability.  The provisions of this agreement are severable.  If any part of this 
agreement is held invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of the agreement shall 
remain in full force and effect unless amended or modified by mutual written consent of the parties. 

4.09.  Submittals.  In addition to any other submittals required by this agreement, 
Consultant shall submit copies of its current business license and current certificate of workers 
compensation coverage to the District before beginning work on this project. 
  4.10 Prevailing Wage. Prevailing Wage.  If applicable, Consultant and all 
subconsultants are required to pay the general prevailing wage rates of per diem wages and overtime 
and holiday wages determined by the Director of the Department of Industrial Relations under 
Section 1720 et seq. of the California Labor Code.  The Director's determination is on file and open 
to inspection at www.dir.ca.gov and is referred to and made a part hereof; the wage rates therein 
ascertained, determined and specified are referred to and made a part hereof as though fully set 
forth herein. 
  4.11  Exclusive Ownership.  All plans, specifications, reports, electronic media, records, 
and other design documents prepared by Contractor pursuant to this agreement shall be the property 
of the District; District is entitled to full and unrestricted use of such plans, specifications, reports and 
other design documents prepared by Contractor pursuant to this agreement; such plans, 
specifications, reports, and other design documents prepared by Contractor pursuant to this 
agreement shall be used exclusively on this project and shall not be used on any other work unless 
deemed necessary by the District. 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this agreement is executed by the parties on the date first written 
above. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CONSULTANT    SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY     
      SANITATION DISTRICT  
 
 
__________________________  ______________________________ 
By:        By:   
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
District Counsel 
 
 
 
 

128



 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 
Consultant to provide a timetable for the work below for approval by the District 
Administrator. 
 
Consultant will assist the South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District with completion of the 
Financial Assistance Application for State Revolving Fund (“SRF”) financing for the District’s 
Redundancy Project. 
 
More specifically, Consultant will perform the following key tasks: 
 
Project Team Orientation ‐  To initiate work, hold a conference call with District staff,engineering 
consultants, and others as appropriate, to identify objectives and financing needs, establish a project 
schedule, and identify project team roles and responsibilities.  Consultant can also assist the District 
with retaining a qualified bond counsel if needed.   
 
Complete SRF Financial Assistance Application – Complete the Financial Assistance Application 
along with required Tax Questionnaire and any other required application forms.  Put together an 
application package that includes the completed application and required attachments and submit to 
SRF.  Coordinate with the District’s SRF Project Manager to ensure all required information is 
submitted to SRF’s approval. 
 
Assist District with Adoption of Required Resolutions ‐ The SRF Financing Program requires the 
District’s Board of Directors to adopt and submit a number of resolutions as part of the Financial 
Assistance Application.  Work with District Counsel to obtain Board adoption of required resolutions. 
 
Update Financial Projections – As needed, update the District’s financial projections with any 
updated project cost, debt service, or other information, and submit to SRF to demonstrate 
compliance with SRF debt service covenants. 
 
Remain Available to Respond to Questions and Info Requests – Remain available to address 
any questions or information requests from SRF related to completing the SRF Financial Assistance 
Application. Remain available at all reasonable times and on reasonable notice for meetings and for 
consultation with District staff, attorneys, consulting engineers, and others as necessary. 
 
Additional Services – Consultant will remain available to provide additional financial advisory and 
consulting services as directed by the District. 
 

129



 
EXHIBIT “B” 

 
Consultant will provide the services in accordance with this Agreement for a not-to-exceed fee of up 
to $12,000, plus direct expenses (not to exceed $500 unless approved in advance by the District 
Administrator).  
 
Consultant will invoice District for services on a monthly basis based on time and materials as 
provided in Consultant’s Billing Rate Schedule 2016, which will remain in effect for this project.  The 
Billing Rate Schedule 2016 is page 8 of Consultant’s Proposal dated March 28, 2106, and it is 
incorporated as though fully set forth here.   
 
In addition to the services provided under this proposal, the District may authorize BWA to perform 
additional services for which the District will compensate BWA based on consultants' hourly rates at 
the time the work is performed, plus direct expenses.  Additional services may include, but are not 
limited to: 
 Cha nge s  in proje ct s cope 
 
 Any othe r s e rvice s  not s pe cifie d 
 
If the project is terminated for any reason, Bartle Wells Associates is to be reimbursed for 
professional services and direct expenses incurred up to the time notification of such termination is 
effective as provided above in this agreement. 

130



 
EXHIBIT “C” 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 

Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contact insurance against 
claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in 
connection with the performance of the work hereunder by the Consultant, his/her agents, 
representatives, or employees.   

 
  A. Minimum Scope of Insurance 
 
   Coverage shall be at least as broad as: 
  
   1. Insurance Services Office Commercial General Liability 

coverage (occurrence form CG 0001). 
 
   2. Insurance Services Office Business Auto Coverage Form 

Number CA 0001, Code 1 (any auto). 
 
   3. Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the State of 

California and Employer's Liability Insurance.   
 
   4. Errors and Omissions liability insurance appropriate to the 

Consultant's profession.  Architects' and engineers' coverage is to be endorsed to 
include contractual liability.   

 
  B. Minimum Limits of Insurance 
 
   Consultant shall maintain limits no less than: 
 
   1. General Liability - $1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury, 

personal injury and property damage.  If Commercial General Liability Insurance or 
other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the general aggregate limit 
shall apply separately to this project/location or the general aggregate limit shall be 
twice the required occurrence limit.   

 
   2. Automobile Liability - $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury 

and property damage.   
 
   3. Employee's Liability - $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury 

or disease.   
 
   4. Errors and Omissions Liability - $1,000,000 per occurrence.   
 
  C. Deductibles and Self-insured Retentions 
 
   Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and 

approved by the District.  At the option of the District, either: the insurer shall 
reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions as respects the 

131



District, its trustees, officers, employees and volunteers; or the Consultant shall 
provide a financial guarantee satisfactory to the District guaranteeing payment of 
losses and related investigations, claim administration and defense expenses.   

 
  D. Other Insurance Provisions 
 
   The commercial general liability and automobile liability policies are 

to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 
 
   1. The District, its trustees, officers, employees and volunteers 

are to be covered as insureds as respects: liability arising out of work or operations 
performed by or on behalf of the Consultant; or automobiles owned, leased, hired 
or borrowed by the Consultant.   

 
   2. For any claims related to this project, the Consultant's 

insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the District, its trustees, 
officers, employees and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by 
the District, its trustees, officers, employees or volunteers shall be excess of the 
Consultant's insurance and shall not contribute with it.   

 
   3. Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be 

endorsed to state that coverage shall not be canceled by either party, except after 
thirty (30) days' prior written notice stating the title of this contract has been given 
to the District.  All notices provided pursuant to this Agreement shall be given 
to the District representative  listed for notice in this agreement and shall 
specify the title of this Agreement.  Notice may be given by overnight mail, 
facsimile with confirmation of receipt, or certified mail with return-receipt requested.  
In the case of a reduction in coverage, the Consultant shall provide thirty (30) days’ 
prior written notice as provided in this subparagraph. 

 
  E. Acceptability of Insurers 
 
   Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best's 

rating of no less than A:VII, unless otherwise acceptable to the District.   
 
  F. Verification of Coverage 
 
   Consultant shall furnish the District with original certificates and 

amendatory endorsements effecting coverage required by this clause.  The 
endorsements should be on forms provided by the District or on other than the 
District's forms provided those endorsements conform to District requirements.  All 
certificates and endorsements are to be received and approved by the District 
before work commences.  The District reserves the right to require complete, 
certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements effecting 
the coverage required by these specifications at any time.   

 

132


	Consent Agenda
	1   Agenda 04-20-2016
	4A.  Minutes of 04-06, 2016
	4B. WR 04-20-16
	WR 02.04.15

	4C.  Financial Review March2016
	SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY

	4C.  Monthly Financial Summary.xlsx
	5A.  SuperApril2016
	5B.  Regarding the Cherry Ave

	6A.
	6A.  a Staff Report Hubner Contract 2016 04-20
	6A.  b Resolution approving Hubner Contract 2016 04-20
	6A.  DA Contract Attachment A
	0151_001


	6B.
	6B.   A Speiss Staff Report
	SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY

	6B.  RESOLUTION approving agreement for grit removal system with Speiss Construction Inc
	6B.  Grit Removal System Agreement with Speiss Construction
	DOCUMENT 00500
	AGREEMENT
	FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE BOND


	DOCUMENT 00610
	FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE BOND

	DOCUMENT 00620
	LABOR AND MATERIAL BOND

	DOCUMENT 00680
	GUARANTEE AND DEFECTIVE MATERIAL BOND


	6B.  Attachment B Speiss proposal
	6B.  Award Recommendation
	6B.  Notice of Award

	6C.
	6C.  Merk Contract Staff Report
	SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY

	6C.  RESOLUTION approving agreement with Kevin Merk Associates, LLC
	6c.  Professional Services Agreement - Kevin Merk Associates LLC 2016

	6D
	6D.  Outfall Staff Report
	SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY

	6D.  RESOLUTION approving agreement with Aquatic Bioassay and Consulting Laboratories, Inc. 2016
	6D.  Professional Services Agreement - Aquatic Bioassay 2016
	6D.  SSLO Ocean Monitoring 2016
	Cover Page 2012
	Proposal SSLO Ocean Monitoring (03 16) (v1)
	SLO Summary Price Sheet 2016 (v1)
	SLO Detailed Price Sheet 2016 (v1)


	6E
	6E.  A Staff Report BWA SRF Financial Pkg Services 4 20 16
	SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY

	6E.  RESOLUTION approving agreement with Bartle Wells Associates 2016 - SRF
	6E.  Professional Services Agreement - Bartle Wells 2016 - SRF

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



